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FETIT TET TH T FEATA ZMIA PR ACH Q00 - - - -
FeATlad ATes
AT AGHET FTAH T THH (FF TS R T ) | Q00 ¥34,53 ¥3Y 533 /Y &5 /Y55
(@) ST ¥34,53 ¥34,5R3 ["YL,&RE ]["L,&RE
FA SMgH AT FFIfa ST (F) + (@) RJ,RRE,R5% | R9,¥4¥ ¥90 | 95 %¥9 034 99,39y Ys3

903 T TRYAai-20bT/ bt W




Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

HRAIS ASshIbIsdicd orgfda fadiar e feifdes

TG GEHH
Frimr faa © adw afogasee
HAGAT ¥4
farar TEAPF ara. qra. T, qr.g. qr.g.
209Y¥ /9y 208y /9% Q0% /99 000,95 | 3045 /9
q. @& AR/ EA AT FFFerd g | 9%.03% | 99.33% 90.39% 9%.9% R0.44%
3. gfd SR AT & %9.20 0¥ 33,93 $0.¥3 .39
3. 9fd SR FNR " = 3,330.00 | 9,3%5.00 qY%%,00 3,959,8%, 3,35%.00
¥, Hed AT o 9ra (PE Ratio) | @991 30,55 RR.0% ¥5.5\9 ¥Y.50 39.9¥
Y. SR YSIET ArfeT (@9 |feq) | gfqerd 0.%¥Y ¥Y.00%, 39.45% ¥3,00Y, 30,009,
% ¥R YSITHT TR AT AR gfeere 0.30 93.40% .Y5% 9.009, .00,
O, ST AT/ Foll g7 AT gfqed | 95.3%% 99,339 QU1 % QY. %% 9%.29%
S, FHAN G/ FA oA @ gfaerd | @3, %%, 9%, 33% 94.,99% V- R ¥ 50.2%%
Q. e 8T TUT AU A @A | IANT | §%.95% %5.33% \99.4.0% %2959, 93,2 %%
90. WEl TS AT/ FHA AR | feerd - - - _ -
9. FHAE AT/ R FHAG @A | AT | R3R% | 16.59% %.35% 29.38% R4.39%
R GF AT, Pl ATTE WA | 3.49% 2.4%% q.%8% 3.30% 3¥4%
3. GF AR/ ET TR T | 3.94% 3.93% 9.4%% 2.29% 330%
V¢, & For, fET WA | R99% 9% NIUE% | WGy | U
. B AT G/ T G| AT | ¥ R9% 3.5%% 335% 5% 3.30%
15 SfE® ST FFIfawT qotrepTep!
RRIESEI)
F) gratas g wawa | qo.53% | 90.45% 2.%3% R.&¥% 10.45%
@) TwF G g | 9.40% 0.2.9% 9.50% 9.34% 1.33%
T A A E W | 93.33% | 99.44% 99.93% 90.5%% 19.50%
qu, g¥ear (CRR) EERIC) 0.09 0.09 q.0%% 33.99% 0.4%
9. T FA1/FA FHAT gfeera 0,00 0.53Y% 2.54% ¥ 9% 9.53%
9Q. =S T A=< (Weighted 5.09% ©.19% 4.50% 8.5¥% £L.R%%
Average Interest Rate Spread)
R0. Ik qaad & [1,00%,334,5%%|9,R%¥ 2%, 03| ,¥3¥ %9, ¥3¥ | 9,29%,59%,59%| 34U3%,40941
9. & AW e 3,94R,09 4,00% QL% %,R44,9%%3 5, ¥¥Y 190 | 90,44Y &3¢
IR, FA FHAR T Yoy 9¥Y WY Wy g 505
W AT
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W
FORWARD e s
; Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
A

mﬁma@aﬁmm%ﬁﬂé@

JAT..3095 /9% ﬁ?ﬁwﬁa'(vmmw%a THE @ Hifq aan femufige

HAGAT ¥.3%
qHE @ Afage
q. TEFT ATHT :

FRATe ATSHIREAT (A G fafqds quredr wiua fafaa 2o 9osr Aftaaeawar
“egr” FareR! faxirar FTAT &1 | 99 faxirg AT Pl US, 053 I=aiia fAfd 0%% /04 /35 HT
WWWW%W?@WWQORMWWWWW
T8 R060,03,/03 2 TR BREAR T ATH H | AT g TEATEHN FeaTd FTATAT ear 7.1,
TSN A, R, GAGHT TEH T | T fa<ira Fearer qufad faera Sepepl STAT 7 7. Gl TATSTATA
AT AT AT TRBT BT T T FTHd I TR G | I [aird G4l aTaae
TR ¥ O TSTedl (AAE, ATwIS[g, TR, TATH, Wldl, AR, d9&al, deqH, T@ardsl, "o,
ey, faveT, SeaYR, gvuT, Werdel, qeltel, fawqell, @ierg, Adee, T, anT, WharaR, faaa,
TAARIET T, TAAIRIET G, TSl a5, hiaaeed, die, dieal, qEd, haATedl, a9,
ThIR, FTITATSHIF, STAUXT, STdl, UTedT, TATHIE T FISHUS) HT AT FREAR GooTel
TRH 3 |
g1 faxirg |l AR AT fgarad e e fafAdeAr giaed 98 FRER JEed B |
fa=ira faawor 095 /0% /09 3@ R09R /03/33 FT AMYE FRIER AT TN TR TTTHT
Enll

. THE @ Afagedt
fairr faavues qaR 9T&l ATaR HIHUSET AT o@l qiides ad Jeod TRTHE S |
AT Ioold TRUHHT ek AT Alqeeedl AT My FTAT AR] TRUH G |

3. QT EEReT AFETLOT ¢

&, VAT I AheTe TATAT T T FRATETehT AT ATl =TS Thlg=drad T=AT (Institutes
of Chartered Acccountants of Nepal) 3TRT ST “Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS)” @[
T I “NFRS Migration Guideliness to Banks and Financial Institutions” &=r<T I qUhT for
I FEAT ATEAR “F7 HR ST 99 YT JATeeel AL, 3093/09% @kl [dfad
faa?uE® NFRS AR IR I 988 | O¥ I9 [ ATl A1a. 00 /0WR FI [dfad
faor NFRS S8R TR TTRUH & |

9. 79 Tgfaq o el [diag [qaRues d@rdr qear [ages a1 9T J@rArd
(ATIT Fooi@ TRUBTHT TqMeeh), S TAT [aRia T Tl U, 093 q41 AT T
FeRgIRT ST TRTeRT FTETES T AT UH, R0%3 &% AR /AT IR TRTEHT T |

T FEl o faxiry [qarues Uaeiids aRTael AadRomH IR TRTHE 81 |

o, BT g faaig [qaRues qwa9m Jooi@ TRUeh! ATTATHAT aeeh GIaATS A@TSAb! SATTAT
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FRATE HIGHIRIEATE agfad fadw d@ean fafuds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

| o

TAR TRTHT A |

a7 faxira faamor gwarer afafer MR=aRare ATaRAT IR RS & |

a7 fairar fqa=oTer TPl gemes quTer g Sebebl (AITAT iRy THINTT & B | 4
TAAd AGTHTAA Albehl GIATHI ATHed a1 T, |

AEEEare Afd=wA (Deviations)
FAT T AISHT I & AT AT A Sobebl (9T ATAR TG JIART ATETEHT
AGIEHA TMRUHT G | T FaT ek AT [SERTIVTATE oG TR ATATHT A@IgH e
TH G | TE ATAATS AT JIART ATIRHT @G T T A@THA-09” (AT HT
I U ATAR, ATATS ITGA THH T TG g Tl TPl (TTeT (Fair) HeAHT @IS
T I AT AR e B |

AT/ T AGTERA T AITdaT :

ST AT

Tl /ATAEHT AT ATRTHT ATl AT Tebebl I ITAR G ITRATPT ATARAT TATE
B | Tel TS ATRHIATS “FITd AE@THI -0 (qRTAN) THITSTH GIEHTEl A1amR (Accrual Basis)
HT @IS TR S | FAT AT AIICHT TTebebl A% I g Aehebl TS AU AT Sehebl
[HETAR 99T AHhh! TS [@daHT o@l TS Hoddl fedrd (Interest Suspense Account) T
STHAT TTRTERT |

T qAT b TIITAHT YTebebl AT ATRTHIATS GIGHTAT TR (Accrual Basis) T i@Ts+
T 3 |

TSl TAER -

frerg atfaca dar faguar o ArafeAr fa{a= =TS THH TEATET AT (Accrual Basis) T
AGTE TR |

I AT AT THET -

UTEFEEATT T T AT 9esh T A+ Mebe® AT [AGUHT HT TfTHT A FaT TesbelTs
FRIER Tl [GTq AT a7 AT q@rsd T 3 |

q=T g ATRTET q9T @=es GIEHTEl ATER (Accrual Basis) AT &1@T3H T & |

feaw avafa qar gewfy @ifa -

fadrar e @ie Rusr grafaars Ufaetfas T TaErRom (Historical Cost Concept) 2T
HeAhT T AT qEafead a7 GHeedls THT THTI TRTH B |

a1 TANT AUHl [AfT 7 S ufed gwg diie Al HE| TR gTHeHs TR 3 |

T g SeM, IHRER e, Thic F&, ISR (A 97 97 A9 AHHITE FIATS TaT
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FYATE ATEHIRTEAT qgfaa facig den fafieds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

ATA9TH THET 9T T AT T TgT AAfeTepl 9&H g RTHeh dvevia oer@d TRAws, |
feqz Il eTdedly 3¢ ATIHT FFaled Jaiad HIaAl aaed] THITSTH TRUH & |

e gwafae! gTH®E 3 ATIF UA 0Us FHIGH Teal g1 yurrer (Diminishing Balance
Method) T ATITRHAT @i TS S, |

BER] L%

FATAT FATAT ITFLI TAT FFaT JUFIEE 4%
wieR a9 =R U
LEINIIPE] 0%
I A %

G OIS (ST TREAIR) I THT @ g T el THHATS qr=el TRT T 3013
THH GF AGUH T |

. 7g fafaw g fer gmfa qe SW0 $.90%3 ¥4 /- T AT AWMH ARIGR q@rd
TS FaT 5,539,305 /- TR THAT 5.90%,54,¥33/ - SN T Fa IM@UH ATHA
TARTHT FREH B |

tofrerd ARTf avafaee averd d@ren Jifd -
forira H&gqrepl gz gfd 3h1g ¥.3,000/- ¥ a7 Al A= HH Hed HUH q9T AH
AT TF FioTel T TTHE g T TR(ThT TEIAeears Goilehd AT H1ie feruep g |

TSl AT

FSIT FIAAT THH AT Tehesdls G aqTs Y& T TR, |

FAT AHIRT fRedR FqAT fAfeeror i qre Jurer o2 Sehebl S AAR ARiTeRor T
g, |

THeId HUEware I TThTAl IHH ATl SATSTHT TGRS TSNS, il Tadhl I
FHATS AT FHSATR! (A" FETHT FHESA T T, |

FAT AT FqEAT
foirr @earer otievers (e FEifad afiezor T JuTe AT Fepep! HaoT THITHBT
TIHT ATET ATHh] FATHT AT ATFTHT ATEIT T THT G
.9 faaor ATl e &
9 | WS FHAT TIEGT AATEIHT Foll T -30 [GHATFHHT qT@T ATLRHAT 9.30 giaerd
R | & R 39-%0 fa W 9T ATeeRT e Y giaerd
3 | FHES BT 29-950 [&F FEA AT AR FHSATHT Y gfcered
¥ | SipredE el 459-3%% faF IF9 W@ Aree werE Yo giasTd
Y | g wet o 3%% fod Sf@ wrfaer amer qrar wetrn 900 graeTd
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aW4
RS I:ORWAR AT AR e fash wen s
; z Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
2 \Estd: 2069,
Lotinan’

0. @I FIEEh! TG Hifd :

.

R

.

T AR FoIl ATAGA [ATTATATAD] FALAT ATAR Follel FT@T AT = T eaT
&l AT AT AUPT a1 @G AT G 9 GIqerd HS(l Al gaeal AUHl Bl
AT ATALIF AT qAee IR AUHT Foledals Aqd@d T 2w | Bl Aqer@d Tal
N . N0 c ~ c Sy [N A
T AT Sihehl MR ATAR Follehl ATA@AATs ATR AT [Garadl @ drgws aref
IHT FAT ATTAB] AR AALATATS HoIl AR aLdTeTe [hiehl FAT ATHT AHTAI
fedTaeT ATRRTHIHT F9HT @ TS, |

T aFaeet Hife

AHEEATE TAT T el (G ATAR Q) SATIRE AT ) TR FHraed gy
T AT T 3) fashrer anft U dRTHreT Rideesar afiteer i |

TF THRTHT giorhd fadraaesdT TRUH dRHiel Hearsd R Hed a1 aoR Hed Held
S FH g8 e aRTeR TS | Wb TRI~THT dradhd THUH [Iaraaar TRUs dxmien
TS I HeTHT TR

AT G HT qURT TRAATATS I I Sehebl AT AR ATAIAE® AT HaedT
TS |

IR [faaAeTs qfseeor T @fe Tl tafd 3@ @ s@tg R g satd e
qerET TRA |

T dfws awfa awfea Hif

R dfery grItaeTs aFatead HTeTe 9 g9 aME FTAT AT Fad TFATAHT TAR Hed Hel
S %9 g5 e THH SR1E J@rgd T, |

R Afepy qEATaer! AT SAEET qUTe AL Aehehl (MG ATAR A |

R dfpy Tvafa aefa@d TR 9T THE d@TEA RO TEANET S 99 AT ST T
FHATE ATHT AT fedrad THEs TRAS, |

HIEOT ST W :

S a7 faxira G=AT qEEeAT T 2063 THT WY (9) THITH TRTAT IoNHl qeR AT
Yeieh YRl G& ATRIATE S FIATd TehH ATERY ST HITHT THATR A, | qre
FEATA R0 YIAeTd A=aT Afe AT faawor Tl @ueHT R0 giqerq w1 Afgs  faared
ATATLHT L0 FITUT THH SST HITAT THATR TS, |

T Tdag THEIWH i
feraelt AT Frafrad @vafa, Sfaca a9 Feel ueae ATRT qda7 =g dFid FRIER
BTl AREHT BT AT GEIRAT hel A A TehT ST |
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FRATE HIGHIRIEATE agfad fadw d@ean fafuds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Y. FHAT TSR] TLEAT :

1%

qe.

FAE U, 3030 ATAR ATIF JFEAT AP ATHRTATE Q0 FqTT THH FHA aHT aT9d
35\ : o l

SUTH FFfee SUaed

#TH UA R09% & Yreegr wwal (4= faciiar Fearel FH=Is AR JUTd fae+ ITRTAH!
AT fairar Samept A=<l 44T fafaaaraeiie T (§5) ATER 9= a9 a1 Ardw=T a6l ga
T FaeiTa et Tl FHANATS AAHTT qTCHT AT ATTATHT e IRTS FaATare e
TUAT a7 Aiadqr T qerer Farer A s 9oefed T Aarene geguaAr Hearg
TETT FHIH IIEH e -

a9 sfE T AGEE YA T FHARTA ATRA FIH Th I queh! AT Arhad
ATAT HEATH TAT,

TYT AYNRT FAET Tod AUHFH HaT THT FHARA ATl HIH bl Tcddh AUl ([T ATRET
Teh HeldTh qad,

TRl A T a6l A a¥ G AT Tl FHARS AThl I TP T qUHl e
AMET ST HElATehl T,

A qY TRT T YAT TH FHANA AR HIH bl Joddh auHl Haa st 39
HETATH! TAT,

ATTHT TEAFEl ATEAT :

T qUH F T

AR UA, J0¥c T IAMET 9T FHIAT JURT TAIIHR] ATGRAT e (g T
YASTAR] AT HIH G& HATHIR! 30 JIAUqehl el AR FALT TRUB & | FAUH
AT HUHRT ATTHY THAATS [ aehl AR FHATSA TR THIT /JMTT STEHHT
ATHATAHT TEigdq & |

T & A /I

AT Y T/ SHIcaesd! FANT ATIR T AGEd ATARIST= ] THATATRT  ATATTAT
@TZT TRTHT B, | TRTH T M/ SAAATE ATIATART THITHT HBTTH &bl ATTRR b
ATITHT IICATIERRT TR 3 |

T RURT R T/ qcadTs IiaSAT qar Farfg 9 fafted 95 St e
HATIHT FHATSIA T Alehreg, ATHT STl Tqel A=dal THUGHH TR # Graraarg
G TR G |

I I SAebebl 49T ¥ AYTer @A ( Nepal Accounting Standard — 9) STEITSTH €T
F FHE T WA Y AMIcadls GARSE T ATFLIRAT ATaR I e’ a1 ‘o
e’ i SEEAg |
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

. I Alfagw :

(%) T= UM T9d JIT @I FAAATs (A= AFdT =TT TR THH TATTT AT 6]
T gATT I<h TEARl SATAATE TATHAT g9 TR Tl ST @ T Tl gAT ATTATS
feqoe et ofiiepare |ET seraHr afaua g |
T SFRN AL TTET BT A@atd ¥ IO Fa9d g MRUH B AT [REAT AGate
¥ T TEAFATATE T el qaGR faaear Gsuar 3 |

(@) AFAT AT :

FATAT JATSTAHT AT Gi¥E TRTH HHAE AMHHESATS Gie TRUH HIAT F @
AET RTHT B | AT TUTS TXTeh! ATATAEE @I TRTH! THTAT o AMGUR T THbT AvTHAT
TEHT WISETAATS AT AT ATIRAT HeATSH T A= TEATTHT J@IETH G |
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FYATE ATEHIRTEAT qgfaa facig den fafieds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FAGAT ¥.R9
@r graeel feutige
. FEAET TAE HOERT FAT A, T WoHT ¥ e wfvewr anan aan sawwent faaor fm
YA EH © -
+.9. feraar T 99 A (7.%.) T 99 T (7.3
Ik E G ET 9539035009382 | 99,2§,4%,33,544.00
.| ATAfAT yaTe AUHr FHAT WIS REEAATEFERE R0,34Y4,%%%,%35.43

3. %F) AHAT FUH AqiaT 190539 REV. 5% 9%,990,%%5,0¥4.59
q) I AU AT 3,239,249,030.35 ¥ 955,903,99%.50

) ferer TiRwR =S (%34,%9%.00) (5,039,9%%.39)

¥, | A gA Al @rar 30,335,000, 934 3% 95390350938 %3

AT T qT FH FATh] AT TAT (HATET TRTHT FraT T ST TERT B |
3. FuARHT afkady AuEl eT qfaed TEHe faaer e o Er RE g |

*.9. ferear [T AT bl Tq | T TRl ATl T= AUNRAT I e[ T
1. Fiard sr=rd 1,430,40%,55% 4,50%,95% 3% % RUR,R5¥, 405
R Uik or=rd 3,954,509 %Y ¥,333,555,9%9 ¥%5,350,%¥3%
3 F F=q 9,3¥3%30,59z 9,23%,%33,54R Y95, 50 ] 0¥
¥ ST a9 %,%3%,933 ¥4% 924%,909,3%5 1,39%,3%9,20%

FUPT ATHAT FHA A T8 T=q THA 3.924%,909,385 /- TFH g | A@IAT T 0N {787
T AT AT JRET T O AT I6H A5 a9 dh TRl S, |

3. QIS TAT AT YIHT THH HET YRATHT ATThbl FHARIEGS(ETA (MpTITe)er femriaaT T
T fafdra Feamer [t oaraTe F9a THIAT qaule 95 Al THH 6.3993 239/ - FHA
STR 9% AHha! gATA T AT, TFIH & AALT THH %990 ¥\90 /- JHAST T 99/
() THH F.(IRVYUY¥3I) /- Udehl HEH &350, ¥ ¥R /- ATAGT TAUhl T A9 .99,0%% /-
el T T IR AT ARITaTE AR J@l ATl HITHT TagUh! B |
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FYATE ATEHIRTEAT qgfaa facig den fafieds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

_W4
* x
AL/
’o ~,
Dfinanc”

A
¥. el A HAEAT T Folgehl JTAEq :
TG IR oAl ATFRITHT TG 8T THITTH TEh F
%.9. [EEr TG 99 99 | 99 ATHT STEAT
q | rHS BT WIET AATHRT BAT AAT §-30 FEAR! WG AR | < 6H51310¥ U8 5B RER
R | wEw R 39-%0 faF FF e AT Fe (30,04 %0%) R,¥35,¥5%
3 | FHEA &l 9950 faF T 9T ATeeRT el (39,493,340) 12,9%9,3%R
¥ | SipTedE FEl 959-3%Y f&T @E WrEr ATeeRr AT el (99%,039333) 9%,5%0,349
Y| ERTe e 3%y T gfg wifaeRr AT ATEeT Heil TR (35,8%% R¥3) RR¥,ERR,¥35
AT : AT AT g Al AU Feeredl [FaR0 ATSTEURMT | V4%, R3%,04% AECR IR
¢ | TP EAEREA/- T R00s TITAT TEPT AR FAT 309 %,
IGTTAT AEHTHT TEhT FHSATh T TITTT ATARTh boll
ATRATHT SAARAT F.945,20R %3/~ TRITH G |
ST qx,w?,aox @X?]@ioyk‘)\&?

A TG o FA FATH] ATAGT TRTHT S |

Y. fRET ¥ Fwrer aiia S =T S o= (Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread)
e fererear ETd FRTA
q | ST AT T GEIATAT A0 gfaswe 9%.29%
3. | M8 qur FadreEr dva aRTa By 2.%3%
3 | ®g dvd (9-3) 4.R%%
¥, | JTEiE @ A R.55%
T AT GHEg SEH AR T SATSaTT I &I AT J10cd qoT qeaiaars

ARTT ald (Maturity Period) T SATATRHT AT~ THT AwRTAHT ANTHIU T T T AT
WWW%&WWW?WWW&|WWW

FHSIH TEhl G |
ferareor q g 20 2q whE =9 <fE RN " q Tl =T HA TR
Tt qso fa= Rwo faq 3ey fe= afe
Tt
e Hreard $99%.3 9992,
EEIE I E R ERECIGIE S 3R¥qLe. 59 EEPCICCREO)
F AT =R0%%1.3%
FST GTaTe QE9ETq%0.%\9 q09%%00.0%[ 303%50.09 R03%50.09 R03%50.09 03,5000, 93
=T Y ¥ ¥3q.0\ qE%3=9.50 29259R.59
Bl TFIT Q02,5 ¥ Y9, g MR ¥IR.3Y  R03%50.09 R03%50.09 3%%389.%0 R¥90909. %
o
=l f7arT
F=ra e 92 % 290.9 %] ¥ ¥ 5029, ¥ ReE29%. 35 RS9 RAEICC RS 92 % 2909.39
Az fHFEa
FHST 9raa q0055393.93 Q0055393193
AT qGT 3T AT ThTHT
T ESESER 2] RRRE3.R5 95950.35 RRYEGIREY %R z0q90. 9%
T FfIeT qQOYT03¥. 55  ¥WO3IZO &R RE529%.35  J¥VRO%. ¥R QELSORYS. %0 4SREL I SL. 5 Y|
Gz fataa T qS0¥OWRR. 55 AIGUYLEY | —S¥RILIO | _wIRRE. ¥S | qRR1IUST.S0| | ISIUIIL.SO
e w= fataa @ 9E0¥0¥RR .55  ROYLWRLY.UT ROO500RR Q4| 0035505 Y ISYRIU.5 9 0.00
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FYATE ATEHIRTEAT qgfaa facig den fafieds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

G.

ferfrar Feamepr FFafe ¥ IR FAHATeId HRIER T ATAATT ATMEXhT BIRIAR Fe Teh i,
aive® AT GEATHT . . ool lebebl YTATHRT el Aebivrgd Tl o |

FHART faa faer -

AT P! ArTHT T FHATEGH] Frer (a1 ATTAH! AT ST ITOT T2 ATHT AT
feamamr @ o ATATaHT S T AT TR B | AT UF R04s, FHITH e
foaT ATIqeT TFAATS THITH! ATIRAT @ Hlg T e gl AFFL 0T T&T Gl IHHATS
AT T g MURT S F1 G bl Y TATAATS AT B ST AT Eare fHetrT TR 3 |
7 o farelr gearerr it awitsre dfera faarerr i 76| %.59,0%.9, ¥ 43,00 FadIuE! @ 99
T a9 FiehT TeehT Fferd a1 arade! THEAATE BT AT FHATRIESHT AT .3 9%%,305.00
ARTAT TR G |

qo. AAHTH STTRTHT TFIfeel e :

M.

fafaa FeaTel FHARATS ATH1T JIT (65T IUGTHR! ATNT [oxird SRl FHAT Jar
[T ATl AR ATHIT AR IS ART FHARIGEHT AT HTH TH THHI AR
AT g T TUET T ATCH THA . 43,¥5¥ 0%¥5.00 5 JF a9 @9 @l T d
T AvTd TG /IS BT | @lehd TRURT G | T TUHT F T FAEAT ThT
T ¥Y M99, %¥9%.00 AUH TG | FATHT Fel IHHAATS W(hd G AGFILT BITHAT STHAT T
TH B | FHARIEEH AT &.535 559,00 AAHT HT ThAT TRTH T |

e GIEUT R
faira @eaTer Wesh IR feddr AT U AT ShHr G FHISTH  HATRTH
q YfqeTd T9T R0 FITTasT=aT del T&ATad ATdAT (FE qIT ST 99%) fadqeor T4 YUAT Ih
THHH Y, FIATT THT UTedh FIETT HITHT (Client Protection Fund) I I 2@t STHITSTH 4T
FITHT <ETT THITH ThY FF TR G |
feraor

+.9. THH T, Fihad

| % Hrsea 939,¥9¥,09%
2| FF AT gE HATHIH 9% o g THH %, 985 000
3. | R0% WRET TFET YRGS ATHIYT TbH bl §BAT 0 Y. el Afdeh 29,999,

THHB % o B THH

¥, | a9 TURI ¥ HYAE @ (9,%99,39”)
Y. | 7T HIATE THATAR £,909,¥39
& ikl 1¥3,543 430

T dFATE TISTATAITG “F” aeHT AHfad [aard GEAeeeTs ST ATHT Thihd [TaeTd,
095 G ¥ FFAR Afeedl AT, H ATRIATE STHAT G ThHH FATH L0 Fiaerd TeH
afgel A qUHT @9 MY, I T 9 99 300s /09, AT UTesh FRETUThITHT
I HURT THH ¥.3%,40%,20% & 40% THH ¥.9%,943,¥4%.55 @ TIAH ABHas AT
FTAHY FoATAT T GT THH eI F.39,%99,292.00 @I JUH T |
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AT T SR AR AT AT FEATEEATS ST R (G 7893 awifed
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Responsibility Fund) T O @< STHINTH &7 HITAT @1 JHITH IehH TaeT TR 3, |

£k ferareor T E HRad
Q. | 9% HiewTd 33,233, 93¢
2| TE 99 gg HATHIH % o &1 THH %, 995,008
¥, | F9 qUE TH HIUATE G ( ATH] AR ATSHISHT HRITH ) (2905,5%%)
Y. | ¥ PIUATE THATR
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3 TeTe g YW ®.5,0RQ U5 Y HUAT 9fF ATferd @+ $.9% 2¥\3,0%9.0% TIRH T T &M ¥
FH @ g1 I T T.% 3% §0%.%5 of AG HUB AWAG HTATS THASIT ARl T AT Pl
THT 9,990,554, aTehl e 6 G AT 99 AGRAT GEITSUH G |

UISTRd AUR! HSAIR ATIAH! THH HAAE T Y (sl ThRaETAT TAedd TTehiel 91
ARAITH] ST TEHT .5, A LY T & G TGP B, T T TGP [olleh TAHIF ThReT
TR E.59%,¥3¥ 50 oI5 @I TR T €.9%,5% 5% Gl il THAATS TERITHT TGTH G
A M AREAIR TR AT GoeATs Ak @ SIHAT w@iehT TRUHT 3 |

=[hT ITHET AR STehTAT T (Paid in Advance), STERTHT 9T &+ aITebT (Calls in Arrears) ¥ SThel
TRUHT TR G AEPIeT 7RI TehebT KTRTTSATH T AT ShehTHHO STIRES T8ehl & |

h) AT B -

T qY AFF AT 3.3%%,894,350.53 /- AT TRTH G, | ATF [d1d AFF U7 2045
qAT Trebl IHTEAT STETTAT TRTHT 3 |

AT =AY EAEH G AT T H ARG AR @919 (HAT fersRor (Reconcilation Of Net Profit as per
Books of Accounts & Profit as per Income Tax Act)
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FAGAT ¥.3
FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statement as of FY 2078/79
(Rs. In 000)

As per As per Variance
S.No. Particulars Ul}audlfed é“dlte.d Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial In Amount In %
Statement St: t
1 | Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1 to 1.7) | 21,884,179.99 | 21,126,760 | (757,420) -3.46%
1.1 | Paid up Capital 844,450.99 1,055,564 | 211,113 25.00% | Due to proposed bonus shares
1.2 | Reserve and Surplus 1,847,931.73 1,481,386 | (366,545) 19.84%  |Due to changes on profit after Audit
1.3 | Debenture and Bond - -
1.4 | Borrowings 10,088,373.73 | 10,088,374 | 0.00 0.00%
1.5 | Deposits (a+b) -
a. Members 7,959,101.37 7,959,101 0 0.00%
b. Public - - -
1.6 | Income Tax Liability 362,303.81 - (362,304) 100.00% | Due to loan loss aditional
expenses and bonus
1.7 | Proposed Dividend 42,223 42,223 0.00%
1.8 | Other Liabilities 782,018.37 500,112 (281,907) 36.05% Due to suspense interest and
other adjustment
2 | Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7) 21,884,179.99 | 21,126,760 | (757,420) -3.46%
2.1 | Cash and Bank Balance 332,297.09 963,944 631,647 190.09% | Due to conclusion after bank
2.2 | Money at Call and Short Notice 638,591.22 - (638,591) | 100.00% | reconciliation and reclasific
ation from other assets
2.3 | Investments 182,000.00 182,000 - 0.00%
2.4 | Loans and Advances 19,811,479.01 19,655,240 | (156,239) -0.79% | Due to loan loss aditional
expenses and bonus
2.5 | Fixed Assets 165,381.60 161,212 (4,170) -2.52% | Due to software assets adition
2.6 | Non Banking Assets - - - 0.00%
2.7 | Other Assets 754,431.07 164,364 (590,067) 78.21% Due to suspense interest
¥ | Profit and Loss Account -
3.1 | Interest Income 2,968,784.62 2,960,365 | (8,420) -0.28%
3.2 | Interest Expense 1,607,603.71 1,603,473 (4,130) -0.26%
A. Net Interest Income (3.1 - 3.2) 1,361,180.91 1,356,891 | (4,290) -0.32%
3.3 | Fees, Commission and Discount -
3.4 | Other Operating Income 405,891.38 337,582 (68,310) 16.83% | Due to in service charge
3.5 | Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) -
B. Total Operating Income (A+3.3+3.4+3.5) 1,767,072.28 1,694,473 | (72,599) -4.11%
3.6 | Staff Expenses 440,034.51 457,391 17,357 3.94%
3.7 | Other Operating Expenses 126,738.67 107,704 (19,035) 15.02% | Due to classification chages
for depreciation and other
C. Operating Profit Before Provision (B -3.6-3.7) | 1,200,299.11 1,129,377 | (70,922) -5.91%
3.8 | Provision for Possible Losses - 14,672 14,672 100.00% Pue to additional provision in LLP
D. Operating Profit (C -3.8) 1,200,299.11 1,114,705 | (85,594) -7.13%
3.9 | Non Operating Income/Expenses (Net) -
3.1 | Write Back of Provision for Possible Loss 141,566.84 117 (141,450)
E. Profit from Regular Activities (D+3.9+3.10) | 1,341,865.95 1,114,822 | (227,044) -16.92%
3.1 ‘ Extraordinary Income/Expenses (Net) -
F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E+3.11) 1,341,865.95 1,114,822 | (227,044) -16.92%
3.12 | Provision for Staff Bonus 134,186.59 111,482 (22,704) -16.92% Due to change in Profit before taxes
3.13 | Provision for Tax 362,303.81 325,532 (36,772) -10.15% | Due to tax calculations
G. Net Profit/Loss (F - 3.12 - 3.13) 845,375.55 677,808 (167,568) -19.82%
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Kinjal & Associates QG

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
FORWARD MICROFINANCE LAGHUBBITA BITTITYA SANSTHA LTD.
DUHABI, SUNSARI

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Forward Microfinance Laghubbita Bittitya
Sanstha Ltd. Which comprise the statement of financial position as at 32" Ashad 2079,
and the statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in Equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory notes.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanation given to
us the aforesaid financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at 32" Ashad 2079 and its financial performance, changes in
equity, and its cash flows for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory notes in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards(NFRS) with carve -outs and comply with the Company Act 2063 and Bank and
Financial Institution Act 2073.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of
the company under the provisions of Companies Act 2063, and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics for a Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
Ashad end 2079.These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters describe below to the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Address-Biratnagar-02, Munalpath S kinjal.kna@gmail.com
Contact-021-570451, 9852033119 | =™ kinjal.pokharel@gmail.com
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COP No.- 715
Mem. No.-951
Vat Reg. No.- 104927096

Kinjal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Key Audit Matters | Auditor Response

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NAS 39 and carve-out for the | Our audit approaches included clear

respective standard, impairment for loans | understanding of the practice of the

and advances has been measured as the | calculation of impairment of Loans and

higher amount derived as per norms | Advances.

prescribed by an NRB for loan loss

provision and amount derived as per para | Our Result: we agreed with the calculation

63 i.e. Expected Loss Method. of the impairment of Loans and Advances
. made by the management.

Information Technology System and control Impacting Financial Reporting

The information technology of the | Our audit approach regarding Information
company is Complex and involves a large | Technology of the company is based upon
number of independent and inter- | the Information Technology Guidelines
dependent IT system used in the operation | 2012 issued by NRB and it also included:

of the company for processing and
recording a large volume of transactions.

Verification of the interest income and

As a result, there is a high degree of expenses booking regarding loans and
reliance and dependency on such IT system deposits on test check basis with the
for the financial reporting process of the CBS of the company.

company. " |e Reliance on the IT audit conducted by
Appropriate IT General controls and the company.

application controls are required to ensure | e  Verifications of the provisions of the
that such IT systems are able to process the loans and advances based on ageing on
data, as required completely, accurately test checks basis.

and consistently for financial reporting.
Our result: we considered the information
We considered this as a key audit matters | technology system and their relevant
as any control lapses, validation failures, | controls to be adequate.

incorrect input data and wrong extraction
of data may result in wrong reporting of
‘data to management, stakeholders and
regulators.

Other Information:

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. -

Our responsibilities are to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
information is materially inconsistence with the financial statements of our knowledge
obtained in the course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is;a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to repg#t that fact. Werhave nothing to report in this
B« )1
regard. \A"A’ "Q(‘b-\\ojj
=N & o)
\ (&

Address-Biratnagar-02, Muna
Contact-021-570451, 9852033119

Email: kinjal.kna@gmail.com
e kinjal.pokharel@gmail.com
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Kinjal & Associates | R

Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
cither intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with the governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process. .

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting.

o Evaluate the overall presentations, structure and context of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

TN

ciat

< —\GA’N

Sy
o

Address-Biratnagar-02, Munalpath il kinjal.kna@gmail.com
Contact-021-570451, 9852033119 | =™ kinjal.pokharel@gmail.com
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Kinjal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

We have determined to communicate the followings matters in accordance with the
requirements of NRB directives, Companies Act 263, BAFIA 2073 and other regulatory
requirements.

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief, where necessary for the purpose of our audit.

e Based on our audit, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by
the company.

e Returns received from the branch offices of the company were adequate for the

purposes of our audit though the statements are independently not audited.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets

of the company are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastriya Bank.

e In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordingly to the explanations
and from our examination of the books of accounts of the company we have not come
across any cases where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the company have
acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused
any loss or damage to the company and violated Directives issued by NRB or acted in a
manner, as would Jeopardize the inferest and security of the company’s , shareholders
and its depositors.

e The business of the company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdigtions and has been functioning as per NRB directives.

The engagement proprietor on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is CA

Kinjal Pokhrel.

W
CA Kinjal Pokhrel
Proprietor

Kinjal and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Biratnagar-2, Morang
Date: - 2022-12-19
UDIN: 221219CA00951cTJie

Address-Biratnagar-02, Munalpath e kinjlaLkna@gmaiIAcon?
Contact-021-570451, 9852033119 * kinjal.pokharel@gmail.com
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FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Financial Position

As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16 July 2022) Figures in NPR
Particulars Note As at Restated™ Restated*
32nd Ashadh 2079 As at As at
31st Ashadh 2078 1st Shrawan 2077
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 1,143,944,183 1,896,295,336 1,355,698,392
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 - - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - -
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 19,840,202,750 15,678,221,348 11,866,760,945
Investment securities 4.8 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Current tax assets 49 29,603,537 - 50,469,218
Investment properties 4.10 - - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 207,132,705 119,898,817 106,674,504
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 2,491,089 3,034,713 -
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 3,264,818 11,008,580 7,255,781
Other assets 4.14 35,613,405 32,117,533 25,913,415

Total Assets 21,264,252,487 17,742,576,327 13,414,772,254

Note As at Restated*® Restated®
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2079 As at 31st As at
Ashadh 2078 1st Shrawan 2077

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 10,063,373,727 8,635,978,888 5,950,439,685
Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank 4.16 - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - - -
Deposits from customers 4.18 7,959,101,368 6,639,733,459 5,602,721,504
Borrowings 4.19 25,000,000 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - 46,406,035 -
Provisions 4.20 64,016,569 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.12
Other liabilities 4.21 411,052,344 240,261,012 104,510,912
Debt securities issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total liabilities 18,522,544,008 15,562,379,394 11,657,672,100
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 844,450,988 625,519,250 500,415,400
Share Premium -
Retained Earnings 994,045,534 827,523,108 711,531,491
Reserves 4.25 903,211,958 727,154,575 545,153,263
Total equity attributable to equity holders 2,741,708,480 2,180,196,933 1,757,100,154
Non-controlling interest - - -
Total Equity 2,741,708,480 2,180,196,933 1,757,100,154
Total Liabilities and Equity 21,264,252,487 17,742,576,327 13,414,772,254
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.26
Net Assets Value Per share 325 349 351

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date

Keshab Raj Poudel Ashutosh Sharma Rajkumari Chaudhary CA Kinjal Pokharel

Chairperson Director Director Kinjal & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
Balram Chaudhary Jagat janga GC Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Date: 2079.09.04 Place : Duhabi
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16 July 2022)

Flgures in NPR
. Year ended Restated*
Particulars Note 32nd Ashadh 2079 Year ended
31st Ashadh 2078
Interest income 427 2,953,782,479 2,166,218,896
Interest expense 4.28 (1,596,338,940) (991,760,911)
Net interest income 1,357,443,539 1,174,457,986
Fees and commission income 4.29 329,801,321 338,099,982
Fees and commission expense 4.30 (17,636,700) (4,292,606)
Net fee and commission income 312,164,621 333,807,376
Net interest and commission income 1,669,608,159 1,508,265,362
Net trading income 431 - -
Other operating income 4.32 6,761,286 7,793,492
Total operating income 1,676,369,445 1,516,058,854
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 14,672,251 364,575,390
Net operating income 1,661,697,193 1,151,483,464
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 434 (552,220,818) (410,741,819)
Other Operating expenses 435 (62,685,050) (70,379,892)
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.36 (33,629,123) (8,729,932)
Operating Profit 1,013,162,202 661,631,820
Non operating Income 4.37 191,355 -
Non operating expense 4.38 - (7,652)
Profit before income tax 1,013,353,557 661,624,168
Income tax expense 4.39 391,232,082 220,933,280
Current Tax Expense 382,925,288 224,529,222
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) 8,306,794 (3,595,943)
Profit for the period 622,121,475 440,690,888
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 622,121,475 440,690,888
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit for the period 622,121,475 440,690,888
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS 73.67 70.45
Diluted EPS 73.67 70.45
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
Keshab Raj Poudel Ashutosh Sharma Rajkumari Chaudhary CA Kinjal Pokharel
Chairperson Director Director Kinjal & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
Balram Chaudhary Jagat janga GC Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2079.09.04 Place : Duhabi
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16 July 2022)

Flgures in NPR
Particulars Year ended Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2079 31st Ashadh 2078
Profit for the year 622,121,475 440,690,888
Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair
value
Gains / (Losses) on revaluation
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans (1,876,772) (522,857)
Income tax relating to above items 563,032 156,857
1I:Iet other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to (1,313,740) (366,000)
rofit or Loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains (Losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains (Losses) arising from translationg financial assets of
foreign operation ) )
Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassify to Profit or Loss - -
Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to
Profit or Loss ) )
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per
equited method ) )
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (1,313,740) (366,000)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 620,807,735 440,324,888
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholder of the bank 620,807,735 440,324,888
Non controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 620,807,735 440,324,888
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. AS per our report of even date
Keshab Raj Poudel Ashutosh Sharma Rajkumari Chaudhary CA Kinjal Pokharel
Chairperson Director Director Kinjal & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
Balram Chaudhary Jagat janga GC Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2079.09.04 Place : Duhabi
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16 July 2022)

As per NRB Regulation Figures it NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 622,121,475 440,690,888
Appropriation
a. General Reserve (166,646,844) (170,874,019)
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (6,221,215) (5,103,345)
e. Employees training fund
f. Client Protection Fund (27,332,489) (39,506,904)
g. Other
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 421,920,927 225,206,621
Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 9,789,249 48,571,996
b. short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. short provision for possible losses oninvestment (-)/reversal
+
fi. )Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-
)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized (-)/reveral (+) (3,264,818)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+)
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) (1,313,740) (366,000)
i. Other (+/-)

Profit or (Loss) after Regulatory Adjustments 427,131,616 273,412,617
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
Keshab Raj Poudel Ashutosh Sharma Rajkumari Chaudhary CA Kinjal Pokharel

Chairperson Director Director Kinjal & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
Balram Chaudhary Jagat janga GC Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2079.09.04 Place : Duhabi
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16 July 2022)

Flgures in NPR
Particulars Year ended Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2079 31st Ashadh 2078

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 2,968,106,362 2,242,775,515
Fees and other income received 329,801,321 338,099,982
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 6,761,286 7,793,492
Interest paid (1,591,938,143) (991,760,911)
Commission and fees paid (17,636,700) (4,292,606)

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

(481,136,772)
(101,791,395)

(350,342,435)
(70,387,544)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

1,112,165,959

1,171,885,493

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Other trading assets

Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

(4,193,415,728)

(4,253,874,564)

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from customers

1,319,367,909

Other assets (2,272,340) (5,460,122)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions 1,427,394,839 2,685,539,203

1,037,011,955

Borrowings 25,000,000

Other liabilities 143,610,747 74,571,603
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (168,148,615) 709,673,568
Income taxes paid (451,375,814) (126,249,373)
Net cash flow from operating activities (619,524,429) 583,424,195

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(71,421,642)

(24,988,958)

Net cash used in investing activities

(71,421,642)

(24,988,958)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liability

Receipts from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

(43.,786,348)

(32,927,333)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

1,896,295,336

Other recepit/payment (17,618,735) 15,089,041
Net cash from financing activities (61,405,082) (17,838,292)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (752,351,153) 540,596,944

1,355,698,392

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

1,143,944,183

1,896,295,336

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Keshab Raj Poudel Ashutosh Sharma
Chairperson Director
Balram Chaudhary Jagat janga GC
Director Director

Date: 2079.09.04 Place : Duhabi

AS per our report of even date

Rajkumari Chaudhary

CA Kinjal Pokharel
Kinjal & Associates,

Chartered Accountant

Ramdayal Rajbanshi
Chief Executive Officer
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079

Note No. 4.1
Cash and cash equivalents (Figures in NPR)
Particul As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
articutars 2079 2078 2077
Cash in hand 7,119,223 12,177,546 9,891,832
Balance with B/FIs 956,824,960 1,574,117,790 1,305,806,560
Money at call and short notice
Other 180,000,000 310,000,000 40,000,000
Total 1,143,944,183 1,896,295,336 1,355,698,392
Note No. 4.2
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Particul As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
arficutars 2079 2078 2077
Statutory Balances with NRB
Statutory Balances with NRB BFIs
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB
Total - - -
Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Particul As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
artieufars 2079 2078 2077
Placements with domestic B/FIs
Less: Allowances for Impairment
Total - - -
Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments
Particul As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
artieutars 2079 2078 2077
Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Total - - -
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets

As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars 2079 2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Treasury Bills
Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities

Other

Total - -

Pledged
Non-pledged

Note No. 4.6
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives

As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars 2079 2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Loans to microfinance institutions

Loans to Fls

Loans to Cooperatives

Less: Allowance for impairment
Other

Less: Allowance for impairment

Total - -

Note 4.6.1
Allowance for impairment

As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars 2079 2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Balance for 1% Shrawan
Impairment loss for the year
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Total -

Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers

As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars 2079 2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 20,582,963,556 16,406,309,850
Less: Impairment allowances (742,760,806) (728,088,501)
Collective Allowances (262,124,748) (217,357,152)
Individual Allowances (480,636,058) (510,731,349)

12,230,274,056
(363,513,111)
(134,734,649)
(228,778,462)

Net amount 19,840,202,750 15,678,221,348

11,866,760,945

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL

Total 19,840,202,750 15,678,221,348

11,866,760,945
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Note No. 4.7.1
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product

As at 32nd Ashadh

As at 31st Ashadh

As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars 2079 2078 2077
Product
Term Loans
Short term, Term loan
Long term. Term loan
Hire purchase loan
Personal Residential Loans
Staff loans 12,449,527 7,877,328 -
Others 20,398,000,725 16,210,380,728 11,965,123,855
Sub Total 20,410,450,252 16,218,258,056 11,965,123,855
Interest receivable 172,513,304 188,051,794 265,150,201
Grand Total 20,582,963,556 16,406,309,850 12,230,274,056

Note No. 4.7.2
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2079

As at 31st Ashadh
2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Secured
Immovable assets
Government Guarantee
Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt

4,807,798,061

4,120,090,366

3,092,723,687

Group Guarantee 15,771,621,061 12,284,337,988 9,137,550,369
Personal Guarantee
Other collateral
Subtotal 20,579,419,123 16,404,428,354 12,230,274,056
Unsecured 12,449,527 7,877,328 -
Grand Total 20,591,868,649 16,412,305,682 12,230,274,056

Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2079

As at 31st Ashadh
2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Specific allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other Movement

Balance at Asadh end

Collective allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement

Balance at Asadh end

510,731,349

(30,095,291)

480,636,058

217,357,152

44,767,595

262,124,748

228,778,462

281,952,887

510,731,349

134,734,649

82,622,503

217,357,152

49,431,704

179,346,758

228,778,462

101,743,634

32,991,015

134,734,649

Total Allowance for impairment

742,760,806

728,088,501

363,513,111
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note No. 4.8
Investment securities

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Investment securities measured at Amortized Cost
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Note No. 4.8.1
Investment securities measured at Amortized Cost

As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

Particulars

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

Note No. 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particul As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
artiediars 2079 2078 2077

Equity instrument

Quoted equity instrument

Unquoted equity instrument 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Note No 4.8.3
Information related to investment in equities

. As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 As at 31st Ashadh 2078 As at 1% Shrawan 2077
Particulars

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Quoted Equity - - - - - -

Investment in Unquoted Equity
NMBA Software Investment

20000 shares of Rs 100 each 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00

Total 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
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Note No. 4.9
Current tax assets

As at 32nd Ashadh

As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars 2079 2078 2077
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 404,969,779.35 126,249,373 141,600,590
Tax assets of prior periods 50,469,218
Total 404,969,779.35 176,718,591 141,600,590
Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 328,960,208 223,124,626 91,131,372
Tax Liabilities of prior periods 46,406,035
Total 375,366,242 223,124,626 91,131,372
Total 29,603,536.95 (46,406,035) 50,469,218
Note No 4.10
Investment Properties
. As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1** Shrawan
Particulars 2079 2078 2077

Investment Properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note : 4.12
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Imapirment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Software Total Total Total
Particulars Goodwill Purchased Developed Other As at 32nd As at 31st glfr:twl::
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078 2077
Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2077 6,909,470.00 6,909,470.00
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition 3,072,470.00 3,072,470.00
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2078 9,981,940.00 9,981,940.00
Addition during the Year 80,230.00 80,230.00
Acquisition
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2079 10,062,170.00 10,062,170.00
Ammortization and Impairment
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2077 6,909,470.00 6,909,470.00
Ammortization charge for the Year 37,757.07 37,757.07
Imapirment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2078 6,947,227.07 6,947,227.07
Ammortization charge for the Year 623,854.17 623,854.17

Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2079

7,571,081.23

7,571,081.23

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh

2077
2Noe7t8130ok Value as on 31st Ashadh 3,034,712.93 3,034,712.93
2N;7t9Book Value as on 32nd Ashadh 2,491,088.77 2,491,088.77
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note No : 4.13

Deferred Tax Current Year
Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/ (Liabilities)

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items

Loans and Advances to B/FIs -
Loans and Advances to customers -
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities

Property and equipment 13,801,920 (13,801,920)
Employees' defined benefit plan 6,863,054 6,363,054
Lease liabilities 6,525,373 6,525,373
Provisions 1,131,878 1,131,878
Other temporary differences 10,749,381 8,029,944 2,719,437
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 25,269,686 21,831,864 3,437,822

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on year end of 2078-79 3,437,822
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawan 1, 2078 11,181,584
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (7,743,762)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss 8,306,793.57
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income (563,032)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity -

Previous Year
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax

Particulars Assets Liabilities  Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/FIs -
Loans and Advances to customers -
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities -
Property and equipment 4,257,067.80 (4,257,067.80)
Employees' defined benefit plan 5,520,684.90 5,520,684.90
Lease liabilities -
Provisions 1,251,141.00 1,251,141.00
Other temporary differences 8,666,825.70 8,666,825.70
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 15,438,651.60 4,257,067.80 11,181,583.80
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2077-78 11,181,583.80
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawanl, 2077 (7,255,780.69)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 3,925,803.11
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (3,595,942.63)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in
other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity

(156,857.10)
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Note No. 4.14

Other Assets
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
" 2079 2078 2077
Assets held for sale
Other Non-Banking Assets
Bills Receivable
Accounts receivable 19,179,966 17,045,189 8,143,130
Accrued income
Prepayments and deposits 2,477,902 2,410,978 4,621,058
Income tax deposit
Deferred Employee Expenditure 1,963,895 740,364
Other 11,991,641 11,921,002 13,149,228
Total 35,613,405 32,117,533 25,913,415
Note : 4.15
Due to Bank and financial institution
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
" 2079 2078 2077
Borrowing from BFIs 10,063,373,727 8,635,978,888 5,950,439,685
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other
Total 10,063,373,727 8,635,978,888 5,950,439,685
Note:4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Refinance from NRB
Standing liquidity facility
Lender of last resort facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB
Total - - -
Note : 4.17
Derivative financial instruments
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total - - -
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Note : 4.18
Deposits from Customers

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Institutions Customers:
Term deposits - - -
Call Deposits - -
Other - - -
Subtotal: - - -
Individual Customers:
Term deposits
Saving Deposits
Saving from members 7,959,101,368 6,639,733,459 5,602,721,504
Other
Subtotal: 7,959,101,368 6,639,733,459 5,602,721,504
Total 7,959,101,368 6,639,733,459 5,602,721,504
Note : 4.19
Borrowing
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Domestic Borrowing:
Nepal Government
Other licensed institution
Other 25,000,000.00
Sub total 25,000,000.00 - -
Foreign Borrowing:
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Bank
Other institutions
Sub total - - -
Total 25,000,000.00 - -
Note : 4.20
Provisions
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Provisions for redundancy
Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contract
Other 64,016,569
Total 64,016,569 - -
Note : 4.20.1
Movement in provision
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

Balance at shrawan 1st

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashadh End - o E
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Note : 4.21
Other liabilities
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
Liability for long-service leave 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable
Creditors and Accruals 152,808,108 54,396,159 11,730,819
Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend 5,511,588 5,644,728 5,701,600
Liabilities under finance lease
Employee bonus payable 112,594,840 72,985,694 29,300,027
Others 81,429,693 59,942,730 21,572,278
i)Micro protection fund 17,202,978 17,202,978 -
ii)TDS payable 32,216,314 34,478,376 15,230,800
iii)Provision for receivable & Other Assets 3,772,927 4,170,470 4,162,818
iv) Lease Liability 21,751,244 - -
v)other 6,486,229 4,090,905 2,178,660
Total 411,052,344 240,261,012 104,510,912
Note : 4.21.1 A
Defined benefit obligations
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Present value of funded obligations 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
Total present value of obligations 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of net obligations 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligation 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
Note : 4.21.2
Plan Assets
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposits
Other
Total - - -
Note : 4.21.3
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1st 18,402,283 12,768,168 21,312,281
Actuarial losses 1,876,772 522,857 (15,085,013)
Benefit paid by the plan (838,688) (435,121) (402,500)
Current service cost and interest 3,436,478 5,546,379 6,943,400
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 22,876,845 18,402,283 12,768,168
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Note : 4.21.4

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefit paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - - -
Note : 4.21.5
Amount recognized in profit or loss
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Current service cost 1,964,295 4,524,926 5,664,663
Interest on obligation 1,472,183 1,021,453 1,278,737
Expected return on plan assets
Total 3,436,478 5,546,379 6,943,400
Note : 4.21.6
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Actuarial (gain)/loss 1,876,772 522,857 (15,085,013)
Total 1,876,772 522,857 (15,085,013)
Note:4.21.7
Actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Total
Note:4.21.1 B
Liability for long-service leave
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Present value of funded obligations 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Total present value of obligations 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of net obligations 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligation 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Note:4.21.2
Plan Assets
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposits
Other

Total

903 T TRYAGi-206T/ bt W



FORWARD

FATE ATEHREATE agfaa fada d@en fafids

Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

_W4
“0
* \:% x
%o Estd. 2069, 5

Dfinanc”

Note:4.21.3

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1st 28,889,419 23,438,019 30,664,105
Actuarial losses/(gain) 4,510,480 986,999 (10,669,200)
Benefit paid by the plan (3,199,208) (1,214,029) (2,129,059)
Current service cost and interest 5,630,580 5,678,430 5,572,173
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 35,831,271 28,889,419 23,438,019
Note : 4.21.4
Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefit paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - - -
Note : 4.21.5
Amount recognized in profit or loss
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Current service cost 3,319,426 3,803,388 3,732,327
Interest on obligation 2,311,154 1,875,042 1,839,846
Expected return on plan assets
Total 5,630,580 5,678,430 5,572,173
Note : 4.21.6
Actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077
Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Total
Note : 4.22
Debt securities issued
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

profit or loss

Debt securities issued designated at fair value through

Debt securities issued at amortized cost

Total

Note : 4.23
Subordinated liabilities

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
079

As at 31st Ashadh

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Redeemable preference shares

component)
Other

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities

Total
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note : 4.24
Share capital

As at 32nd As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
Ashadh 2078 2077
Particulars 2079
Ordinary shares 844,450,987.50 625,519,250.00 500,415,400.00
Convertible preference share (Equity component)
Irredeemable preference share (Equity
component)
Perpetual debt (Equity component only)
Total 844,450,987.50 625,519,250.00 500,415,400.00
Note : 4.24.1
Ordinary shares
As at 32nd As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st Shrawan
Ashadh 2078 2077

Particulars 2079

Authorized capital:

ordinary share of Rs.100 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued capital:

ordinary share of Rs.100 each 844,450,988 625,519,250 500,415,400
Subscribed and paid of capital:

ordinary share of Rs.100 each 844,450,988 625,519,250 500,415,400
Total 844,450,988 625,519,250 500,415,400

Note : 4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership

As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 As at 321(s)t78Ashadh As at 1250t7$7hrawdl
Particulars
Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership 100.00% 844,450,988 100.00% 625,519,250 100.00% 500,415,400

(promoter)

Nepal Government

"A'" class licensed institution 25.00% 211,110,287 25.00% 156,377,991 25.00% 125,102,393
Other licensed institutions 7.50% 63,333,153 7.50% 46,913,447 7.50% 37,530,758
Other institutions 25.00% 211,110,287 25.00% 156,377,991 25.00% 125,102,393
Other 12.50% 105,561,963 12.50% 78,194,047 12.50% 62,555,238

Domestic ownership
(public)

Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institution
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions

Other 30.00% 253,335,296 30.00% 187,655,775 30.00% 150,124,620

Foreign ownership
Promoter
Foreign ownership public 0.00% -

Total 100.00% 844,450,988 100.00% 625,519,250 100.00% 500,415,400
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Note : 4.25
Reserves

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2079

As at 31st Ashadh
2078

As at 1st Shrawan
2077

Statutory General Reserve
Capital reserve

Exchange equalization reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Client protection Fund

Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial reserve

Special reserve

Debenture redemption reserve
Other reserve

618,161,749

28,034,456
143,296,668

113,627,940

(1,679,740)

1,770,885

451,514,905

23,922,136
131,474,019

118,838,630

(366,000)

1,770,885

280,640,886

19,428,974
76,267,891

167,044,627

1,770,885

Total

903,211,958

727,154,575

545,153,263

Note No. 4.26

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

As at 32nd
Ashadh 2079

As at 31st As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh 2078 2077

Contingent Liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease commitment

Litigation

others

Total - - -

Note No. 4.26.1
Capital commitments

As at 32nd
Ashadh 2079

As at 31st As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh 2078 2077

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub Total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub Total - - _

Total = 4 -
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Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments

Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st Shrawan
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078 2077
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub Total - - -
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub Total - - -

Grand Total - - -

Note No. 4.26.3

Litigation

There are no any pending litigations against Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited as on Ashad end 2079.

Note : 4.27
Interest income

For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Cash and cash equivalents 21,908,944 29,762,748
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions
Loans and advances to customers 2,911,406,926 2,133,525,183
Investment securities 18,307,231 1,883,027
Loans and advances to staff’ 2,159,378 1,047,938
Other
Total interest income 2,953,782,479 2,166,218,896

903 T TRYAai-20bT/ bt w



FRATE HIGHIRIEATE agfad fadw d@ean fafuds
Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Note : 4.28
Interest expense

Particulars

Ashadh 2079

Particulars For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 983,378,813 522,175,983

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers 602,457,899 469,584,928

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other 10,502,228

Total interest expense 1,596,338,940 991,760,911
Note : 4.29
Fees and Commission Income

For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st

Ashadh 2078

Loan Administration fees
Service fees

Commitment fees

Card Issuance fees
prepayment and swap fees
Remittance fees
Brokerage fees

Other Fees and Commission Income

253,494,389

76,306,931

306,707,171

31,392,812

Total Fees and Commission Income

329,801,321

338,099,982

Note : 4.30

Fees and commission expense

Particulars

For the year ended 32nd
Ashadh 2079

For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2078

Brokerage

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission

Other Fees and Commission Expense

17,636,700

4,292,606

Total Fees and Commission Expense

17,636,700

4,292,606
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Note: 4.31
Net trading income

Particulars

For the year ended 32nd
Ashadh 2079

For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2078

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction
Other

Total Net trading income

Note: 4.32
Other operating income

Particulars

For the year ended 32nd
Ashadh 2079

For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2078

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment property
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

6,761,286

7,793,492

Total other operating income

6,761,286

7,793,492

Note: 4.33
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars

For the year ended 32nd
Ashadh 2079

For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2078

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial
institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property

14,672,251

364,575,390

Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

14,672,251

364,575,390
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Note : 4.34
Personnel Expense

For the year ended 32nd

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Salary 200,172,725 148,868,857
Allowances 144,143,510 130,373,702
Gratuity expenses 3,436,478 5,546,379
Provident fund 17,892,505 14,077,396
Uniform 6,697,500 4,247,100
Training & Development Expense 14,947,091 3,982,647
Leave encashment 10,141,060 6,665,429
Medical 4,941,000 4,249,000
Insurance 7,377,875 7,110,618
Employees Incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension Expense
Voluntary Resignation scheme
Finance expenses under NFRS 1,214,606 541,789
Other Expenses Related to Staff 28,661,628 12,093,209
Sub-Total 439,625,978 337,756,126
Employees Bonus 112,594,840 72,985,694
Total personnel expenses 552,220,818 410,741,819
Note : 4.35
Other operating expense
Particulars For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Directors' fee 1,220,000 549,000
Directors' expense 511,690 175,245
Auditors' remuneration 500,000 452,000
Other audit related expense 36,160 26,216
Professional and legal expense 487,219 190,000
Office administration expense 54,352,995 41,090,082
Operating lease expense - 27,287,166
Operating expense of investment properties
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 2,108,894 610,184
Client Protection expense
Onerous lease provision
Other 3,468,091.99
Total other operating expense 62,685,050 70,379,892
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Note No 4.35.1
Office administration expense

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 As at 31st Ashadh 2078
Water and electricity 3,140,254 3,083,005
Repair and maintenance 1,495,470 566,536
(a) Building -
(b) Vehicle 896,657 128,344
(c) Computer and accessories 315,896
(d) Office equipment and furniture 172,739 438,192
(e) Other 110,178 -
Insurance 1,369,824 820,241
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 1,197,859 1,618,277
Printing and stationery 16,687,942 8,607,954
Newspaper, books and journals 55,390 60,045
Advertisement 504,261 258,554
Donation -
Security expense 360,000 360,000
Deposit and loan guarantee premium -
Travel allowance and expense 19,849,794 13,923,705
Entertainment 40,790
Annual/special general meeting expense 665,239 569,061
Other 9,026,963 11,181,914
Bank charge 168,838 -
Office Accessories 1,178,556 -
Office Cleaning Exp 254,883 836,074
Annual Sofiware Repair Exp 1,067,158 1,714,059
Olffice Exp 550,715 1,598,465
Anniversary Exp 511,236 319,060
Internet Expenses 2,703,097 2,904,308
Others 2,592,480 3,809,948
Total 54,352,995 41,090,082
Note: 4.36
Depreciation & Amortization
Particulars For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 33,005,269 8,692,175
Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets 623,854 37,7157
Total depreciation and amortization 33,629,123 8,729,932
Note: 4.37
Non-operating income
For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st

Particulars

Ashadh 2079

Ashadh 2078

Recovery of loan written off
Other income

191,355

Total non operating income

191,355
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Note: 4.38
Non-Operating Expense

Particulars

Ashadh 2079

Particulars For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Loan Written Off
Redundancy provision
Expenses of restructuring
Other expense 7,652.00
Total non-operating Expenses - 7,652.00
Note: 4.39
Income tax expense
Particulars For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st
Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2078
Current tax expense 382,925,288.31 224,529,222.37
Current year 375,366,242 223,124,626
Adjustment for prior years 7,559,046 1,404,596
Deferred tax expense 8,306,794 (3,595,943)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,306,794 (3,595,943)
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Total income tax expense 391,232,082 220,933,280
4.39.1
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
For the year ended 32nd For the year ended 31st

Ashadh 2078

Profit before tax

1,013,353,557

661,624,168

Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 304,006,067 198,487,250
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 74,809,514 10,381,986
Less: Tax effect on exempt income
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (15,222,037) (6,214,441)
Total income tax expense 382,925,288 224,529,222
Effective tax rate 37.79% 33.94%
5.1
Events after reporting date
No Material events have been occurred subsequent to the signing of financial statements.
5.2
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
. Fair Value . Fair Value
Particulars through PL Amortized Cost through OCI Total

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Loans and advances to B/FIs

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities (Govt. &Development Bonds)
Investment securities (Equity)

Other Financial assets

Total financial Assets

Financial Liabilities:

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

1,143,944,183

19,840,202,750

19,179,966
21,003,326,899

10,063,373,727

7,959,101,368

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,143,944,183

19,840,202,750
2,000,000
19,179,966

21,005,326,899

10,063,373,727

7,959,101,368

Other Financial Liabilities 152,808,108 152,808,108
Debt securities issued - -
Total financial Liabilities 18,175,283,202 18,175,283,202
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FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Capital Adequacy Ratios
At the month end of Ashadh, 2079

A. Core Capital (Rs. In '000)
L Period
SN. Description Current Previous
1 Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 844,450.99 625,519.25
2 Proposed bonus share
3 Share premium
4 Irredeemable preferential share
5 General Reserve Fund 618,161.75 451,514.90
6 Accumulated profit/(loss) 994,045.53 827,523.11
7 Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet
8 Capital Redemption Reserve Fund
9 Capital Adjustment Fund
10 Calls in advance
11 Other Free Reserves
Deductions:
a Goodwill
b Deferred tax assets 3,264.82 11,008.58
b Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits
c Investment to the company having financial interests
d Fictitious Asset
. Inyestment on land and building for self use not complying the 60,216.45 60,216.45
Directives of NRB
£ Investment on land development and housing construction in
excess of limits
g Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time
h Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws
Total Core Capital (A) 2,393,177.00 1,833,332.23
B. Supp tary capital
S.N. Description Period
Current Previous
1 Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 262,124.75 217,357.15
2 Additional loan loss provision 3,096.50 2,492.89
3 Hybrid capital instruments
4 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt
5 Exchange Equalization Fund
6 Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is
added automatically)
7 Investment adjustment Fund
Total Supplementary Capital (B) 265,221.24 219,850.04
C. [ Total Capital Fund (A+B) | 2,658,398.25 2,053,182.28
D Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk
) Weighted Assets:
1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 1,656,588.38 1,321,276.49
2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 828,294.19 660,638.24
3 Capital Fund maintained (in %) 12.84% 12.43%
4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 11.56% 11.10%
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
At the month end of Ashadh, 2079

A. On-Balance-sheet Items (Rs. in '000)
L Weight Current Previous
S.N. Description (0/5) period period
Amount RWA Amount RWA
1 Cash Balance 0 7119.22 0.00 12177.55 -
2 Gold (Tradable) 0 0.00 -
3 NRB Balance 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 -
4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0 0.00 -
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0 0.00 -
6 Loan against Own FD 0 0.00 -
7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0 0.00 -
8 Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 0.00 -
Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs Self-
9 0 0.00 -
employment Fund
10 | Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20 956824.96 191364.99 1574117.79 314,823.56
11 | Loan against other banks' and financial institutions' FD 20 0.00 -
12 | Foreign bank balance 20 0.00 -
13 | Money at call 20 0.00 0.00 0.00 -
14 | Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20 0.00 -
15 | Investment to internationally rated Banks 20 0.00 -
16 | Inter-bank lending 20 0.00 -
17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2,000.00
18 | Other investments 100 0.00 -
19 | Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 19840202.75 19840202.75 15678221.35 15,678,221.35
20 | Fixed assets 100 209623.79 209623.79 122933.53 122,933.53
21 Net interest receivables (Total IR - 8 - Interest 100 0.00 }
suspense)
22 | Net Non-Banking Asset 100 0.00 -
23 | Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 38878.22 38878.22 43126.11 43,126.11
24 Ezlailtsestate/residemial housing loans exceeding the 150 0.00 }
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 21,054,648.95 | 20,282,069.76 | 17,432,576.33 | 16,161,104.55
Off-Balance-sheet Items
L. ‘Weight Current Previous
S.N. Description (o/f) period period
Amount RWA Amount RWA
1 Bills collection 0 0.00 0.00
2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10 0.00 0.00
3 L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding 20 0.00 0.00
value)
4 Guarantee against International rated bank's counter 20 0.00 0.00
guarantee
5 L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding 50 0.00 0.00
value)
6 Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50 0.00 0.00
7 Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50 0.00 0.00
8 Advance payment guarantee 100 0.00 0.00
9 Financial and other guarantee 100 0.00 0.00
10 | Irrevocable loan commitment 100 0.00 0.00
11 | Possible liabilities for income tax 100 0.00 0.00
12 | All types of possible liabilities including acceptance 100 0.00 0.00
13 | Rediscounted bills 100 0.00 0.00
14 | Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100 0.00 0.00
15 | Unpaid guarantee claims 200 0.00 0.00
16 Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of 100 425285.05 425285.05 354.851.53 354.851.53
Total Assets)
Total Off -Balance-sheet Items (B) 425,285.05 425,285.05 354,851.53 354,851.53
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 21,479,934.00 | 20,707,354.81 | 17,787,427.85 | 16,515,956.08
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Comparison between Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079

]
FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

As per As per Variance
- - P Unaudited Audited Reasons for
Statement of Financial Position Financial Financial Amount Yo Variance
Statement Statement
Assets
Change in
Cash and Cash Equivalent 970,888,314 1,143,944,183 173,055,869 17.82% classification of
cash & Cash
equivalents
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - 0.00%
f‘lac_em_enl <w1th Bank and Financial B _ 0.00%
nstitutions
Derivative Financials Instrument - - 0.00%
Other Trading Assets - - 0.00%
Loans anq Advances to MFIs and _ 0.00%
Cooperatives
Change in
Ammortization
Loans and Advances to Customers 19,811,479,013 19,840,202,750 28,723,738 0.14% of Loans and
inclusion of
staff loan
Investment Securities 182,000,000 2,000,000 (180,000,000) -98.90%
Current Tax Assets 29,603,537 29,603,537 0.00%
Investment Property - - 0.00%
Property and Equipment 163,468,477 207,132,705 43,664,229 26.71% ;fhcéfics‘;;;
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 1,913,120 2,491,089 577,969 30.21% Included in
other Assets
Deferred Tax Assets 3,264,818 3,264,818 0.00% Included in
other Assets
Other Assets 754,431,071 35,613,405 (718.,817,667) | -95.28% Included in
other Assets
Consequential
Total Assets 21,884,179,995 21,264,252,487 (619,927,507) -2.83% effect of above
items.
Liabilities
. - Due to
Due to Bank and Financial 10,088,373,727 | 10,063,373,727 | (25,000,000) -0.25% reclassification
Institutions PP
of liability
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - 0.00% -
Derivative Financials Instrument - - 0.00% -
Deposits from Customers 7,959,101,368 7,959,101,368 0.03 0.00% Recaleulation of
service charge
Due to
Borrowings 25,000,000 25,000,000 0.00% reclassification
of liability
Due to
Current Tax Liabilities 362,303,806 - (362,303,806) -100.00% reclassification
of liability
Provisions 64,016,569 64,016,569 0.00% -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 0.00% -
Due to
Other Liabilities 782,018,374 411,052,344 (370,966,029) -47.44% reclassification
of liability
Debt Securities Issued - - 0.00% -
Subordinated Liabilities - - 0.00% -
Consequential
Total Liabilities 19,191,797,273 18,522,544,008 (669,253,266) -3.49% effect of above
items.
Equity
Share Capital 844,450,988 844,450,988 - 0.00%
Share Premium - - 0.00%
Due to
Retained Earnings 1,847,931,734 994,045,534 (853,886,200) | -46.21% | Feclassification
from Reserve &
Surplus
Reserves 903,211,958 903,211,958 0.00% preto
reclassification
Sotal Equity Attributable to Equity | 5 695 382,721 | 2,741,708,480 | 49,325,758 1.83%
areholders
Non-Controlling Interest =
Total Equity 2,692,382,721 2,741,708,480 49,325,758 1.83%
Consequential
Total Equity and Liabilities 21,884,179,995 | 21,264,252,487 | (619,927,507) -2.83% effect of above
items.
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As per As per Variance
Unaudited Audited Reasons for
Statement of Profit and Loss Financial Financial Amount %o Variance
Statement Statement
Interest Income 2.,068,784,616 2.,953,782,479 (15.002,137) _0.51% AIR considered
as Income
Adjustment of
CPF interest
Interest Expenses (1,607,603.711) (1,596,338,940) 11,264,771 -0.70% and lease
interest
expenses
Net Interest Income 1,361,180,905 1,357,443,539 3,737,367) -0.27%
Including
Commission
incomes
Fee and Commission Income - 329,801,321 329,801,321 0.00% previously
classified under
other Operating
Income
Fee and Commission Expenses (17,636,700) (17,636,700) 0.00% Reclassification
of expenses
Net Fee and Commission Income - 312,164,621 312,164,621 0.00% -
an‘i‘oL':t:'cs" Fee and Commission 1,361,180,905 1,669,608,159 308,427,254 22.66% -
Net Trading Income - - 0.00% -
Few
Commission
incomes
Other Operating Income 405,891,380 6,761,286 (399,130,094) | -98.33% previously
classified under
Other
Operating
Income
Total Operating Income 1,767,072,285 1,676,369,445 (90,702,840) -5.13% -

. - Recalculation
Impairment Charge/(reversal) for (141,566,842) 14,672,251 156,239,093 -110.36% of loan loss
loans and other losses P

provision
Net Operating Income 1,908,639,127 1,661,697,193 (246,941,933) | -12.94% -
Operating Expenses
Revised
Personnel Expenses (574,221,107) (552,220.,818) 22,000,289 -3.83% calculation of
Interest on staff
loan
Depreciation
included within
Other Operating Expenses (126,738,668) (62,685,050) 64,053,617 -50.54% other operating
expense and
reclassification
of expenses
Depreciation
Depreciation & Amortization (33,629,123) (33,629,123) 0.00% included within
other operating
expense.
Operating Profit 1,207,679,352 1,013,162,202 (194,517,150) | -16.11% -
Non-Operating Income 191,355 191,355 0.00% Reclassification
of ()ther mcome
Non-Operating Expenses - - 0.00% -
Profit before Income Tax 1,207,679,352 1,013,353,557 (194,325,795) | -16.09% -
Income Tax Expenses 362,303,806 391,232,082 28,928,276 7.98% -
Current Tax 362,303,806 382,925,288 20,621,483 5.69% D“f’ntzr‘;]%at“ge
Deferred tax
Deferred Tax 8,306,794 8,306,794 0.00% calculation not
made.
Consequential
Profit for the Period 845,375,547 622,121,475 (223,254,071) -26.41% effect of above
items.
As per As per Variance
Consolidated Statement of Unaudited Audited Reasons for
Comprehensive Income Financial Financial Amount % Variance
Statement Statement
Profit/(Loss) for the period 845,375,547 | 622,121,475 | 223,254,071 | 26.41% -
NFRS Adjustment
Other Comprehensive Income - (1,313,740) 1,313,740 0.00% and Change in
Actuary Valuation
Consequential
Total Comprehensive Income 845,375,547 | 620,807,735 | 224,567,812 | 26.56% effect of above
items.
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FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Principal Indicators
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079

. Restated as As per
SN Particulars Indicator As per previous GAAP per NFRS NFRS
FY 2074-75 FY 2075-76 FY 2076-77 FY 2077-78 | FY 2078-79
1 | Net Profit / Total Income % 19.03% 17.22% 10.27% 17.60% 18.95%
2 Earning Per Share
Basic Earning Per Share Rs. 71.90 60.24 32.72 70.45 73.67
Diluted Earning Per Share Rs. 71.90 60.24 32.72 70.45 73.67
3 | Market Price Per Share Rs. 2,220.00 1,328.00 1,599.00 2,770.00 2,385.00
4 Price / Earning Ratio Times 30.88 22.05 48.87 39.32 32.37
5 Dividend on Bonus Share Rs. 45.00% 45.00% 31.58% 35.00% 25.00%
6 | Cash Dividend Rs. 20.00% 12.50% 6.58% 7.00% 5.00%
7 g‘éevfgzel:“me / Loans and % 18.34% 17.33% 15.65% 13.82% 14.89%
g | Employee Expenses /Total % 73.44% 76.33% 75.17% 83.85% 85.15%
Operating Expenses
g | Employee Expenses / Total % 66.78% 68.33% 71.50% 6.19% 6.94%
deposit and borrowing
10 Elxccol::r;ge Income / Total % R ) R ) R
11 | Staff Bonus /Total Employee % 16.36% 14.67% 9.38% 17.77% 20.39%
Expenses
12 | et Profit /Loans and % 3.51% 2.99% 1.76% 2.81% 3.14%
13 Net Profit / Total Assets % 3.15% 2.73% 1.56% 2.48% 2.93%
14 | Total Loans and Advances / % 217.00% 221.00% 213.56% 236.13% 249.28%
Total Deposit
15 | Total Operating Expenses / % 421% 3.89% 3.38% 2.76% 3.05%
Total Assets
16 Capital Adequacy Ratio
b) Core Capital % 10.83% 10.58% 9.92% 11.10% 11.56%
¢) Supplementry Capital % 1.50% 0.97% 1.80% 1.33% 1.27%
d) Total Capital Fund % 12.33% 11.55% 11.72% 12.43% 12.84%
17 | Cash Reserve ratio (CRR) % 1.00% 1.00% 1.09% 0.95% 0.52%
18 igéasn/c zstal Loans and % 0.00% 0.82% 2.85% 475% 1.83%
21 E;’EII:)NC‘ Worth (Rs. In Rs. 10,062.26 12,649.92 14,346.27 21,801.97 27,417.08
22 | Total Shares Number 3,752,071.00 5,004,154.00 6,255,193.00 | 6,255,192.50 | 8,444,509.88
23 Total Employee Number 595 744 795 758 808
Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares
Name of Shareholder Number of Share  Holding % Amount
Gramin Mabhila Utsukta Bikash
. . 2,111,102 25.00% 211,110,200
Manch(FORWARD), Duhabi Sunsari
Everest Bank Limited 2,111,102 25.00% 211,110,200
Bagwati Chaudhary 242,105 2.87% 24,210,500
Aash Narayan Chaudhary 98,504 1.17% 9,850,400
Shanti Basnet(Adhikari) 42,221 0.50% 4,222,100
Lalita Kumari Chaudhary 42,221 0.50% 4,222,100
Laxmi Krishna Shrestha 50,668 0.60% 5,066,800
Satya Narayan Chaudhary 42,221 0.50% 4,222,100
Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd 87,750 1.04% 8,775,000
Surya Life Insurance Company Ltd. 67,500 0.80% 6,750,000
Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd. 67,500 0.80% 6,750,000
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 270,000 3.20% 27,000,000
523,289,400
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Note No 5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs
1. Reconciliation of Equity

Particulars Explanator | Date of Transition End of last
y note period
presented
under previous
GAAP
Equity as per GAAP 1,434,627,433 1,916,874,814
Adjustments for NFRS

Impairment on loan and advances

Fair value and employees benefit accounting of staff
loan

Lease accounting

Measurement of investment securities at fair value

Revaluation of property and equipment 11,966,124 14,699,632
Recognition of investment property
Amortization of debt securities issued

2
Deferred tax (12,239,143) (13,649,991)
3
Defined benefit obligation of employees 13,023,873 14,646,630
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
4
Interest Income 265,150,202 188,051,795
Other
C . 5
Liability for long-service leave 11,644.332 15,787,704
6
Proposed Dividend 32,927,333 43,786,348
Total Adjustments to Equity 322,472,721 263,322,119

1. Revaluation of Property and Equipment
Depreciation basis have been changed from GAAP to NFRS hence, the difference has been adjust-
ed through equity.

2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is revised due to adjustments made in NFRS financials and deferred tax income/ex-
penses is revised. Deferred tax on Right of use assets, Lease liability as per NFRS 16, and Actuarial
Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of DBO is adjusted through equity.

3. Remeasurement loss of Defined benefit Obligation

Amount of gain or loss on remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation is derived from actu-
ary valuation of Employee Benefit Schemes such as: pension and gratuities. Such gain or loss is
charged to Equity through Other Comprehensive Income.
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4. Interest Income
Interest income recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest rate have been adjusted
through equity

5. Liability for Long service Leave
Amount of gain or loss on remeasurement of Leave encashment is derived from actuary valuation
of Employee Benefit Schemes. Such gain or loss is charged to Equity through Profit or Loss.

6. Proposed Dividend

As per NFRS, Bonus shares that are only to be declared cannot be shown as Share Capital (Paid
Up) unless they are issued. Further, Equity is not reduced for the portion of dividend which has
only been proposed and not distributed.

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Particulars Explanatory End of last period presented under previous
note GAAP

Previous GAAP 510,334,505

Adjustments for NFRS

Interest income 1 (77,098,407)

Impairment of loans and advnces

Employees benefit amortization under staff

loan

Defined benefit obligation of employee 2 1,988,757
Operating lease expense

Amortisation expense of debt securities

Other operating income

Interest expense

Depreciation and Amortisation 3 2,733,509
Other

Leave Provision 4 4,143,372
Deferred Tax 5 (1,410,847)
Total Adjustments to profit or loss (69,643,617)
Profit or loss under NFRSs 440,690,888
Other comprehensive income (366,000)
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 440,324,888
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Explanatory Notes:

1. Interest Income
Interest income recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest rate have been adjusted
through profit or loss

2. Defined benefit Obligation
The difference in gratuity expenses derived as per GAAP and as per NFRS Actuarial Valuation is
recognized

3. Depreciation and Amortization
The difference in depreciation as per GAAP and as per NFRS due to change in Depreciation basis
is recognized

4. Leave Provisions
The difference in leave expenses derived as per GAAP and as per NFRS Actuarial Valuation is
recognized

5. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is revised due to adjustments made in NFRS financials and deferred tax income/ex-
penses is revised. Deferred tax on Right of use assets, Lease liability as per NFRS 16, and Actuarial
Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of DBO is adjusted.
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Explanatory Notes:

1. Cash and Cash Equivalent and Investment Securities
The fixed deposit with original maturity of less than three months have been reclassed under Cash
and Cash equivalent from Investment Securities as per NFRS.

2. Loans and advances to customers
The AIR on Loan have been included with in Loans and Advances to Customers.

3. Property and Equipment

Depreciation basis have been changed from GAAP to NFRS hence, valuation of property and
equipment have changed.

Similarly, Right-of-use assets under NFRS 16 Leases have been included under this head.

4. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is revised due to adjustments made in NFRS financials and deferred tax income/ex-
penses is revised.

Deferred tax on Right of use assets, Lease liability as per NFRS 16, and Actuarial Gain/(loss) on
remeasurement of DBO.

5. Other Liabilities

The changes have occurred due to change in lease liability under NFRS 16, Defined benefit obli-
gation,

and Leave provisions as per NFRS Actuarial Valuations.

6. Share Capital

As per NFRS, Bonus shares that are only to be declared cannot be shown as Share Capital (Paid
Up) unless they are issued.

Further, Equity is not reduced for the portion of dividend which has only been proposed and not
distributed.

7. Retained earnings
NFRS Adjustments have been made through Retained earnings where applicable.

8. Reserves
Reserves have been created for the effect of NFRS adjustments.
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4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Explanatory Notes As per (/)\Ighf‘ﬁlAzl;z;; at 31st Adjustments for NFRS Restated* As at 31st Ashadh
Interest income 1 2,242,269,366 (76,050,469) 2,166,218,896
Interest expense (991,760,911) - (991,760,911)
Net interest income 1,250,508,455 (76,050,469) 1,174,457,986
Fees and commission income 346,399,623 (8,299,641) 338,099,982
Fees and commission expense (4,292,606) (4,292,606)
Net fee and commission income 346,399,623 (12,592,247) 333,807,376
Net interest and commission income 1,596,908,078 (88,642,716) 1,508,265,362
Net trading income - -
Other operating income 7,793,492 7,793,492
Total operating income 1,596,908,078 (80,849,224) 1,516,058,854
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 364,583,042 (7,652) 364,575,390
Net operating income 1,232,325,036 (80,841,572) 1,151,483,464
Operating expense - -
Personnel expenses 2 (416,332,160) 5,590,340 (410,741,819)
Other Operating expenses (74,672,498) 4,292,606 (70,379,892)
Depreciation and Amortization 3 (11,463,441) 2,733,509 (8,729,932)
Operating Profit 729,856,937 (68,225,117) 661,631,820
Non-operating Income - -
Non-operating expense (7,652) (7,652)
Profit before income tax 729,856,937 (68,232,769) 661,624,168
Income tax expense 219,522,432 1,410,847 220,933,280
Current Year Income Tax 224,529,222 - 224,529,222
Deferred Tax income 4 (5,006,790) 1,410,847 (3,595,943)
Profit for the period 510,334,505 (69,643,617) 440,690,888
Other comprehensive Income - (366,000) (366,000)
Total Comprehensive 510,334,505 (70,009,617) 440,324,888

1. Interest Income
The adjustment is due to the interest income from loans and advances with customers and staff
being recognized on effective interest rate basis as per the provision of NFRS

2. Personnel Expenses
The adjustment is due to the actuarial valuation adjustment for Gratuity and Leave expenses as per
the provision of NFRS

3. Depreciation and Amortization
The adjustment is due to the change in depreciation basis as per GAAP and NFRS.

4. Deferred Tax Income
The adjustment is due to the deferred tax effect of NFRS adjustments for Lease, Leave, Property
and equipment and others
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5. Effect of NFRS adoption for statement of cash flows
For the Year ended 31.03.2078

Explanator Effect of Amount as per
Particulars xp ory Previous GAAP transition to ount as pe
Notes NFRS
NFRS
Net cash flows from operating activities 312,814,011 270,610,183 583,424,195
Net cash flows from investing activities (24,988,958) 0) (24,988,958)
Net cash flows from financing activities (17,228,109) (610,183) (17,838,292)
Net mcrease/(decre;ase) in cash and cash 270,596,945 269,999,999 540,596,944
equivalent
Cash and cash equlvalen_t at the beginning of 1315,698.392 40,000,000 1.355,698.392
the period
Cash and cash equlvqlent at the end of the 1,586.295.336 309,999,999 1.896.295.336
period
Explanatory Notes:

This is the effect of the above NFRS reclassification on the Statement of Financial Position from
Previous GAAP.
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FORWARD Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Reporting Entity

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (“The Microfinance”) is a public company incor-
porated under the Companies Act, 2063 and licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank to conduct banking transaction
as a “D” Class Financial Institution under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2063. The Microfinance
has its Corporate Office at Duhabi-2, Sunsari. The Microfinance received the license to commence banking
operations on Chaitra 06, 2069 BS (March 18, 2013 AD). The Microfinance’s Equity Shares are listed in
Nepal Stock Exchange with trading Code “FOWAD”. The objective of the Microfinance is to serve the poor
backward communities of rural areas and to uplift the economic status of Nepal by investing in different
economic sectors under economic liberalization policy, understanding diverse customer needs and providing
broad mix of financial services to business and individuals.

The Authorized Capital of the Microfinance is Rupees 1,000,000,000/- and the Issued and Paid-up Capital is
Rupees 844,450,988/-. 70 percent of the Paid-Up Capital is held by the promoter and remaining 30 percent
is held by the general public. The shares of the Microfinance are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange Limited
(NEPSE). The shareholder composition of the Micro Finance is as follows (as of 2079-03-32).

SN Ownership Percent

1 Gramin Mahila Uuthsukta Bikash Manch ~ 25%

2 Everest Bank Ltd 25%

3 Other Institution and Private Sector 20%

4 General Public 30%
Total 100%

SN Ownership Percent

1 Promoter Shares 70%

2 Ordinary Shares 30%
Total 100%

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal, pronounced by The Institute of Char-
tered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and as per the directives no. 4 of Unified Directives, 2077 issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis.

Up to the year ended 31st Ashadh 2078, the Microfinance prepared its financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of previous GAAP, NRB Directive and Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS) issued by
ASB of Nepal. This is the Microfinance’s first NFRS adopted financial statements. The date of transition
to NFRS is 1st Shrawan 2077. Refer Note 5.10 for the details of significant first-time adoption exemptions
availed by the Microfinance and an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to NFRS has af-
fected the Microfinance’s financial position, performance and cash flows. The financial statements have been
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prepared on the going-concern basis.

These financial statements consist three Statement of Financial Position as of 32nd Ashadh 2079, 31st Ashadh
2078 and 31st Ashadh 2077 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoption of NFRS. The microfinance has
also presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, two state-
ments of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended as of 32nd Ashadh 2079
and 3 1st Ashadh 2078 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Microfinance has adopted all the NFRS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with NFRS
1, First Time Adoption of NFRS. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been
summarized in Notes that follows.

The Microfinance presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis re-
garding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and more than twelve
months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in the respective notes.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh
(mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar.

The current year period refers to 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashadh 2079 as per Nepalese Calendar cor-
responding to 16th July 2021 to 16th July 2022 as per English Calendar and corresponding previous year
period is 1st Shrawan 2077 to 31st Ashadh 2078 as per Nepalese Calendar corresponding to 16th July 2020
to 15th July 202 as per English Calendar.

Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2078/79 2021/22
Previous Year 2077/78 2020/21

1st Shrawan 2078 to 16th July 2021 to
Current Year Period 32nd Ashadh 2079 16th July 2022

1st Shrawan 2077 to 16th July 2020 to
Previous Year Period 31st Ashadh 2078 15th July 2021

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 4th of Poush, 2079.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest Rupee unless
otherwise stated), which is the Microfinance’s functional currency, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which microfinance operates.

2.4 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Microfinance’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Management believes: that the
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estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Information about assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjust-
ment within the next financial year are:

» Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.

*  Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

* Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

* Determination of net realizable value.

* Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

» Assessment of the Microfinance’s ability to continue as going concern.

* Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment.

* Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

* Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

The Microfinance has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year. The nature
and effect of new standards and interpretations are discussed in note that follows.

2.6 New standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued
by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The Microfinance intends to adopt these standards, if applica-
ble, when they become effective.

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted
All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other interpretation issued by
ASB of Nepal have been adopted while preparing financial statements.

2.8 Discounting
Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Microfinance in the preparation of these financial statements
are presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated
otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in
the statement of financial position:

Items Basis of Measurement

Liability for employees Present value of defined benefit Obligation
defined benefit obligations | less the fair value of the plan assets as per
actuarial valuation
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Distinction of Current and Non-Current

Assets
All the assets except the property, plant and equipment and deferred tax assets are classified as current assets
unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes.

Liabilities
All the liabilities except the defined benefit plan obligations are classified as current liabilities unless specific
additional disclosure is made in the notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is pre-
sented separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately
unless they are material.

3.2 Basis of consolidation
The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries or special purpose entities over which it exercises control.
Hence, only individual financial statement is prepared.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and agency bank account balances, unrestricted balances
with NRB, highly liquid financial assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition
and are readily convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in fair value. Cash
and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position. Details of Cash
and Cash Equivalents are presented under Note 4.1.

3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial
position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Micro-
finance initially recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued
on the date that they are originated which is the date that the Microfinance becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities,
NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the
Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial
assets are recognized on trade date.

Classification and Measurement

i. Financial Assets

The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on
the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
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a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pay-
ments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR”) method less im-
pairment, if any.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets
measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently meas-
ured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Mi-
crofinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to
be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other
comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

ii. Financial Liabilities
The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.
b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequent-
ly measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

De-recognition

i. De-recognition of financial assets

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the finan-
cial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Microfinance neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained
by the Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

(i) The consideration received and

(i1) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.
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The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Finan-
cial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a
portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not
derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for ex-
ample repurchase transactions.

ii. De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modifi-
cation is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The differ-
ence between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is
no quoted price in an active market, then the Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximize the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Microfinance follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of
quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive
markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of
the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the bor-
rower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Microfinance
on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group
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of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather than
take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new
loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR
as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely
to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated
using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment securities meas-
ured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Microfinance first assesses individually
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and that
are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is meas-
ured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; and investment securities measured at amortized cost found
not to be specifically impaired and those that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together loans and advances with similar risk characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for specific impair-
ment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances
and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio
behaviour. In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses historical trends of the probability of
default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less
than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between the carry-
ing amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Microfinance. If in a subsequent
year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Other
operating income’.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other comprehensive income
Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in
the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.5 Property and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
assets will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets
includes followings:

e Cost of materials and direct labour;
* Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and
» Capitalized borrowing cost

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss if any. Neither class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair
value measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed
as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.
The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has not measured
any Property Plant and Equipment under revaluation model. Details has been presented in Note No. 4.11 to
the financial statements.

b) Depreciation

Property and equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on straight line
method over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management. Depreciation is recognized in profit
or loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from which
the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and comparative
periods are as follows:
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Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Building 20 years 5%
Vehicles 6 years 16.67%
Computers and Accessories 10 years 10%
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 10%
Equipment and Others 10 years 10%

* The capitalized value of Software Purchase and installation costs are amortized over a maximum 5 years’
period or within the ownership period.

* Assets costing less than Rs.1,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. For assets purchased/sold
during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of use on pro-rata basis.

3.6 Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated am-
ortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and comparative periods
are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Computer software 5 years 20%

This has been presented in Note No. 4.12 to the financial statements.

3.7 Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation or
for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied property.

This also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Microfinance but not sold.
The Microfinance does not have any investment properties as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.8 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into the Microfinance by its customers. These deposits are
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made to deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, call
deposit accounts and current accounts. The microfinance doesn’t have any debt securities and subordinated
liabilities as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.9 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Microfinance has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result
of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

» apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the oc-
currence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

» present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

e it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

» the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
The Microfinance does not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission income, etc. Revenue is recognized to the extent
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably meas-
ured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The
bases of incomes recognition are as below:

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest method. Effective interest rate is the rate
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that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of financial
asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The calculation of effective interest rate in-
cludes all transactions cost and fee and points paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest.
The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets.

Interest income presented in statement of profit or loss includes:

* Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate
method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans, investment in deposit
instruments.

¢ Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included
in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee,
service charges, are recognized as the related services are performed on accrual basis.

Dividend income
Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related
interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. This
includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

3.11 Interest expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in statement of profit or loss using
effective interest rate method.

3.12 Employees Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits

The Microfinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses as
provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan
Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity
and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are categorized under defined contribution
plans. The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the servic-
es are rendered by employees.
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a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Microfinance contribute monthly at
a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any
future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Microf-
inance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior peri-
ods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the
fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high quality
corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation and that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation of obligation
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit method.

The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately
in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are
expensed in profit or loss.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

a) Gratuity

Microfinance provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee Ser-

vice Byelaws of the Microfinance. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retire-

ment or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined

days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service.

As in case of the staffs recruited earlier to the enforcement of new labour act, gratuity benefits have been

provisioned as per the Employees byelaw of the microfinance as below:

a. To the employee serving more than 5 years up to 10 years, half month’s last drawn salary for each year of
service

b. To the employee serving more than 10 years up to 15 years, one month’s last drawn salary for each year
of service

c. To the employee serving more than 15 years up to 20 years, one and half month’s last drawn salary for
each year of service

d. To the employee serving more than 20 years, Two month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
Gratuity provision is made every year by the microfinance under this plan and this is in nature of defined
benefit plan.

b) Leave Benefits

The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/ unutilized leave
subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed / unutilized leave partially in terms of
Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for entire accu-
mulated outstanding leave balance on accrual basis as per Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance.

903 T TRYAai-20bT/ bt W



aW4
RS I:ORWAR AT AR e fash wen s
; z Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
2 \Estd: 2069,
Lotinan’

3.13 Leases

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A

contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

As per NFRS 16, At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liabil-
ity, unless the lease is for short term or of low value.

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost.

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability

(b) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease pay-
ments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall
use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying a cost model at cost
less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by:

(a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made

The Right-of-use assets are presented in Note 4.11 to the financial statements under Property and Equipment.

Details of Right-of-use assets and Lease liability are as follows:

Right-of-use asset Lease liability
As at 1st Shrawan 2078 48,897,745.81 48,897,745.81
Depreciation for the year (22,131,264.80) -
Impairment loss for the year - -
Finance cost for the year - 4,400,797.12
As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 26,766,481.01 53,298,542.93

3.14 Share capital and reserves

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash,
other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attrib-
utable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.

Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 and 50% of additional amount of
Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 20% as provisioned is set aside to
the general reserve.
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Movement in Statutory General reserve during this fiscal year is presented in Statement of Changes in equity.

Exchange Equalization Reserve
This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the foreign currency
computed as per regulatory books is set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-financial
assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured following
revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax con-
sequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model.

Capital reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the amounts
arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds in
this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares
upon obtaining prior approval from the central bank.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of corporate social respon-

sibility.

Movement in CSR Fund during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
As at 1st Shrawan 2078 23,922,135.55
Additions for FY 2078-79 6,221,214.75
1% of NFRS Net Profit 6,221,214.75
Deductions for FY 2078-79 (2,108,894.00)
Expenses Made during the year (2,108,894.00)
As at 32nd Ashad 2079 28,034,456.30

Employee Training Fund

The fund is created for the purpose of employee training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the
microfinance needs to spend at least 3% of last fiscal year’s total personnel expenses for the development
and trainings of the employees. Further if the microfinance couldn’t spend up to the limit of 3%, the short-
fall amount shall be transferred to the Employee Training Fund and shall be used for employee trainings in
subsequent years.
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Investment Adjustment Fund
It is a reserve created on investment in equity instrument if the equity doesn’t get listed in Security Market
within 2 years as per the directives issued by NRB.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for
distribution of dividend shall be presented under this reserve.

Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

The amount of actuarial gains/losses both positive or negative to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for
the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free reserve for distribution of
dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit
plan.

Client protection fund
Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess of 20% is

also allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives.

Movement in Client Protection Fund this year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

As at 1st Shrawan 2078 131,474,018.95
Additions for FY 2078-79 33,433,920.72
1% of Net Profit as per NFRS 6,221,214.75
Interest income for the fund 6,101,431.28
25% in incremental dividend exceeding 20% 21,111,274.69
Deductions for FY 2078-79 -21,611,272.00
Expenses Made during the year -21,611,272.00
As at 32nd Ashad 2079 143,296,667.67

Other reserves
Any other reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose are presented under this by disclosing ac-
count heads.

Proposed dividend distribution

The board of the microfinance has recommended 5% cash dividend and 25% bonus shares for the reported
year 2078-79. This proposal is subject to the ratification by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
The proposed distributions shall be recognized in equity in the period in which they are paid.
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3.15 Earnings per share including diluted
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average num-
ber of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion
to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilu-
tive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued
at a later date.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting
date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of
earnings per share.

3.16 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any
of the Microfinance’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make
decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance. Since the Chief Operating
Decision Maker monitors the activities of the Microfinance as a whole, the Microfinance has classified a
single operating segment.

4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

4.1 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from
Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank
has been presented under this account head. This is included in Note No. 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

4.2 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more
than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this account head. This is included in Note
No. 4.3 to the Financial Statements.

4.3 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each
reporting date.

However, the Microfinance does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2079.
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4.4 Loans and advances to customers

Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs as well as bills
purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances shall be presented. Loan to employees
provided according to the Employees Bylaws of the Microfinance has also been presented under this head.
This is included in Note No. 4.7 to the Financial Statements.

4.5 Other Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets if they have been acquired principally for the purpose of sell-
ing in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade
date, when the Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally
derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or
loss.

Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net trading income’. However, the
Microfinance does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2079.

4.6 Investment securities

Investments made by the Microfinance in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in
three categories i.e., investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securi-
ties measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of invest-
ment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without changing in the cost of investment. This
is included in Note No. 4.8 to the Financial Statements.
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4.7 Income Tax

4.7.1 Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other com-
prehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of
the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and

any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act 2058

Particulars Amount (NPR.) Amount (NPR.)
Profit Before Bonus as per NFRS 1,125,948,396.88
Less: Staff Bonus Provision 112,594,839.69
Profit After Bonus as per NFRS 1,013,353,557.19
Add:

Inadmissible Expenses As per Income Tax Act 2058

CSR Expenses 2,108,894.00

Gratuity Expenses booked 3,436,478.00

Leave Expenses booked 10,141,060.00

Lease Interest 4,400,797.12

Repair Expenses as book 1,495,469.61

Depreciation as per Books 33,629,122.93

Client Protection Interest Income 6,101,431.28

Interest Income recognized on accrual basis for past 2 years

188,051,793.99

249,365,046.94

Less:

Admissible Expenses as Per Income Tax Act, 2058

Rent Payment as per GAAP

(31,547,299.00)

Allowable CPF Expenses

Depreciation as per Tax Base

(13,659,457.68)

Repair Allowed as per Tax

(1,495,469.61)

Gratuity Paid

(838,688.00)

Leave Paid

(3,199,208.00)

(50,740,122.29)

Total Taxable Income

1,211,978,481.84

Income Tax Liability 375,366,242.40
Advance Tax Deposited 404,969,779.35
Income Tax Receivable (29,603,536.95)
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4.7.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax lia-
bilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be re-
alized or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

During this Fiscal Year Net Deferred Tax Asset is NPR. 3,264,818 calculations of which is shown in notes
no. 4.13.

4.8 Due to Bank and financial institution

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks and financial in-
stitution has been presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement
and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial institution has also been presented
under this account head in Note No. 4.15.

4.9 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable to NRB
shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale and repur-
chase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

4.10 Deposits from Customers
All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB has been presented under this
account head. This have been presented in Note no. 4.18.

4.11 Fees and Commission Expense

Payment on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the Microfinance has been presented
under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees, guarantee commission, brokerage
expenses etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.30 to the Financial Statements.

4.12 Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities has been presented under this account head. This is presented in Note No. 4.31 to the
Financial Statements.

4.13 Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads above has been
booked and presented under this head. This includes foreign exchange revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of
available for sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equip-
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ment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver,
income of Finance lease etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.32 to the Financial Statements.

4.14 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

It includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan and advances to bank and
financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank and financial institutions, property and
equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.33 to
the Financial Statements.

4.15 Personnel Expense

All expenses related to employees of the Microfinance has been included under this head. Expenses covered
under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund,
training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus, Finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled
share-based payments etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.34 to the Financial Statements.

4.16 Other operating expense

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this
account head. The expenses covered under this account head includes office administration expense, other
operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments, remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors,
professional and legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructur-
ing, impairment of non-financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions
etc. This is presented in Note No. 4.35 to the Financial Statements.

4.17 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortiza-
tion is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depre-
ciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs on property and equipment, and investment properties, and
amortization of intangible assets has been presented under this account head. This is presented in Note No.
4.36 to the Financial Statements.

4.18 Non-operating income

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions of the Microf-
inance has been presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this account head includes
loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc. This is presented in
Note No. 4.37 to the Financial Statements.

4.19 Income tax Expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit has been recognized and presented under this account head.
This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income. This is
presented in Note No. 4.39 to the Financial Statements.

4.20 Additional Provisions

Forward Microfinance had made for 100% additional loan loss provision on the Ashadh 2079 Outstanding
amount for loan clients which was Non-Performing in Chaitra 2078 and becomes Performing in Ashadh
2079. The effect of this additional provision is Rs.156,902,643.11/-in current financial year.
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5 Disclosures & Additional Information
5.1 Risk Assessment and Management

Credit Risk

A credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a borrower failing to make required payments.

In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and includes lost principal and interest, disruption to cash flows,

and increased collection costs. Factors for the credit risk includes Counterparty Risk, Concentration Risk and

Securitization Risk.

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for management of Credit Risk factors:

* Independent and ongoing credit quality review

* Limiting credit exposures

* Problem credit management system

» Diversification of risk asset portfolio among several sectors and sub sectors of the economy over a large
number of customers

* Deposit of borrower in bank, cash margin and additional collateral at individual level

* Proper valuation, storage, maintenance and insurance of collaterals.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee which is Board Level
Committee, Credit Risk Management Department, NRB Inspection team and Internal Audit Department of
the Microfinance.

Market Risk

Market risk is the possibility of a customer experiencing losses due to factors that affect the overall perfor-
mance of the Microfinance in which the customer is involved. Market risk is systematic risk of the financial
market.

Factors of Market Risk include Interest Rate Risk, Equity Risk in Banking Book.

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for management of the Market Risk factors:
e Stress testing/simulation of market conditions

e Gap Analysis

* Limiting trading activity of instruments in the different markets

* Regular review of risk management processes

* Regular review of Risk Tolerance and appetite limit.

*  Measurement of Equity price shocks.

* Measurement of Interest Rate Shocks

* Interest rate related Risk Monitoring.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee, Internal Audit Depart-
ment

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Microfinance may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This
usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or
income in the process.

903 T TRYAai-20bT/ bt W



aW4
RS I:ORWAR AT AR e fash wen s
; z Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
2 \Estd: 2069,
Lotinan’
A

Factors of Liquidity Risk includes Deterioration in quality of credit portfolio Concentrations in either assets
or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile large deposits, A large size of off-balance sheet
exposure.

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for the management of Liquidity Risk:

* Appropriate composition of assets and liabilities

» Diversified and stable sources of funds

* Access to inter-bank market

» Contingency funding plan for crisis situations

* Regular stress testing

* Cushion of liquid assets held

» Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios

* Review of Deposit Mix Concentration.

Such mitigates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit Department.

Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective portfolio management by
finance department which is monitored by BOD, and other high-level officials.

5.2 Capital Management
The capital management approach of the Microfinance is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital
base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital requirements at all times.

As Capital is the centre piece of the Microfinance’s performance matrix, a sound capital management forms
the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the Microfinance delivers on its objective of
maximizing the shareholder’s value. The senior management of the Microfinance is engaged and responsible
for prudent capital management at all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing
the capital base as prescribed by the Central Bank, the Microfinance is comfortable in meeting the minimum
capital requirements and is strongly positioned to meet the performance benchmarks.

Risk Management Function

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha is exposed to various types of risks including credit, mar-
ket, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the risk management
framework at the Microfinance is to ensure that various risks are understood, measured and monitored and
that the policies and procedures established to address these risks are strictly adhered to. the Microfinance
has set up a strong control and monitoring environment for comprehensive risk management at all levels of
operation.

Measurement of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:

Under Pillar 1 of the specific NRB guidelines, the finance company currently follows Simplified Stand-
ardized Approach for Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk and Net Open Position
approach for Market risk.

A. Credit Risk

Strategies and Process :

All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual of The Microfinance. These documents outline
the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, credit approval process and limits. These doc-
uments are approved by the Board of directors.
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The Microfinance Company’s main emphasis is on SME credit. Different limits of lending power have been
assigned at branch level, department head level and the credit committee level. Every aspect relating to credit
such as procedure, documentation etc. are clearly defined in the Operation Manual and the Credit Policy of
the Microfinance.

Pre-Sanction :

The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within their permissible limits after due scru-
tiny of background of the promoter, nature of business, turnover in the account, other financial indicators,
income, collateral and security. Loans above the authority of branch are recommended to head office for
further decision.

Credit Risk Assessment Process :

Risk Management Department carries out a comprehensive credit risk assessment process that encompasses
analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain credit rating of the borrower. The
credit rating process involves assessment of risk emanating from various sources such as market risk, man-
agement risk, environmental risk, financial risk and security risk taking into consideration as much as 30
sub-parameters under each of these categories. Credit thresholds have been set for forwarding the credit files
for risk rating before they are submitted for approval in the credit committee by the concerned credit units.

Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up :

Concerned branch are required to obtain regular information of the business. In case of revolving loans, the
drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of stocks and working capital checked and
verified at regular interval. The credit units at the Head Office are also required to prepare quarterly credit
report to submit at higher level as a part of formal monitoring process.

B. Operation Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems,
or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the Microfinance’s business activities.

The board level committee that undertakes supervision and review of operational risk aspects are the Risk
Management Committee and Audit Committee. The board and the risk committee review the operational
risk level and the material operational risk exposure. The Audit committee supervises audit and compliance
related aspects. Internal Audit department on the other hand carries out audit according to the audit plan and
reports findings to the audit committee. Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:
The Microfinance has implemented centralized software URANUS Accounting Software and has improved
in its MIS infrastructure in order to ensure the associated operational risks being brought down to an accept-
ably low level.

To safeguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster, the Microfinance has taken
following policies to minimize the risk:

a. Back up — Daily back up of all balances are taken at the end of the day. the Microfinance is developing a
system of auto back up in the near future.

b. Disaster Recovery Site — the Microfinance has established disaster recovery site.

c. Validation of Entry and Password control — There is a system of maker and checker for entry validation
before posting. Access authority for data entry, update, modification and validation has been given on the
basis of levels of staffs.
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d. Exception Reporting — The system creates exception report as and when required.

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control :
The Microfinance has defined every banking procedure in the Operation Manual related to banking transac-
tions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by branches is regular.

Corporate Governance :
NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.

C. Market Risk

a. Investments

Currently Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha has not made any investment for trading pur-
pose.

b. Foreign Exchange
The Microfinance’s policy is to maintain the net open position of convertible foreign currency where ex-
change rate risk persists in matching position.

5.3 Segment Analysis

5.3.1 General Information

The Microfinance’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic, financial and opera-
tional policies and operations are controlled and directed from the head office. The microfinance operates in
162 branches though has a single jurisdiction

The Microfinance has identified following segments as reportable:
a. Banking Segment involves functions like collecting deposits and lending activities among other similar
activities.
b. Treasury Segment involves short term and long-term investment activities like investing in T-Bills,
Bonds, Shares of companies etc.
c. Remittance Segment involves activities of transferring / receiving funds locally and/or globally.

There is no inter-unit cost transfer mechanism within the Microfinance.

There is no inter-unit cost transfer mechanism within the Microfinance.
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5.3.2 The segmental information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities are presented below :

Particulars Banking Treasury Remittance | All Other Segments
a. Revenues from external customers 3,283,583,799 6,952,641
b. Intersegment revenues

c. Net Revenue 3,283,583,799 6,952,641
d. Interest revenue 2,953,782,479

e. Interest Expense 1,591,938,143

f. Net interest revenue (b) 1,361,844,336

g. Depreciation and amortization*

h. Segment Profit / (Loss) 1,361,844,336

i. Other Material non cash item

k. Impairment of assets

1. Segment Assets** 21,139,782,423 2,000,000

m. Segment liabilities** 18,047,475,094

*Depreciation and amortization cannot be allocated to reportable segment from internal data record keeping system.

**The presented assets and liabilities exclude assets such as PPE, Intangibles, Advances and payables that
are not allocable to particular segment.

5.3.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

a) Revenue

Total revenue of reportable segments 3,283,583,799
Other revenue 6,952,641
Elimination of intersegment revenue
Entity's revenues 3,290,536,440
b) Profit or Loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,361,844,336

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts:

(348,490,778)

Profit before income tax 1,013,353,557
c) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 20,986,146,933
Other assets

Unallocated amounts 278,105,554
Entity's assets 21,264,252,487
d) Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 18,047,475,094
Other liabilities

Unallocated liabilities 475,068,914
Entity's liabilities 18,522,544,008
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Information about product and service

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point 1 (b) above.

a) Banking 3,283,583,799
b) Treasury -
¢) All Other Segments 6,952,641

Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

Domestic Amount (Rs.)
Province 1 3,523,528,273
Province 2 1,892,455,502
Bagmati Province 172,310,129
Gandaki Province 365,105,432
Lumbini Province 316,716,612
Karnali Province 45,623,464
Sudur Paschim Province 344,383,835
Foreign -

Total 6,660,123,247

Information about major customer :
None of the customer individually or as a group contributes to 10% or more of the Microfinance’s revenue.

5.4 Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.

5.5 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business undertaken. The
microfinance company has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice
has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, the microfinance makes adjustment to ac-
count for adverse effect which the claims may have on its financial standing. Contingent liabilities on other
matters have already been disclosed in notes 4.28.

5.6 Related party disclosures
The related parties of the Microfinance which meets the definition of related parties as defined in “NAS 24
Related Parties Disclosure” are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key manage-
ment of the Microfinance includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other
higher-level employee of the Microfinance. The name of the key management personnel who were holding
various positions in the office during the year were as follows:
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Name of the Key Management Personnel Position
Bhagbati Chaudhary*** BOD Chairman
Ashutosh sharma Director
Keshab raj paudel Director
Balaram Chaudhary Director
Jagat jang GC Director
Raj Kumari Chaudhary Director
Ash Narayan Chaudhary* Chief Executive Officer
Ram Dayal Rajbanshi** Chief Executive Officer
Krishna Prasad Bhattarai Executive Manager/Company Secretary
Hira Kumari Thandar Chief Manager
Dhirendra Kumar Majhi Senior Manager
Rajendra Chaudhary Senior Manager

* Ash Narayan Chaudhary resigned the position of Chief Executive Officer as on 2079/01/12.
** Ram Dayal Rajbanshi joined the position of Chief Executive Officer as on 2079/04/16.

*** Bhagbati Chaudhary resigned the position of Chairperson as on 2079/08/14. Keshab raj paudel became
the new chairperson from dated 2079.08.14

5.6.1 Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances are provided
to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allow-
ances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the Finance with him whereas
compensation paid to other member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by
management time to time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle
facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) were as follows:

Particulars Current Year
Meeting Fees 1,220,000.00
Other Expenses 511,690.00
Total 1,731,690.00

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors were as follows:

Particulars Amount

Short term employee benefits (including Bonus and Paid Leave) 3,374,818.00
Vehicle Facility

*Other Benefits

Other long-term benefits

**Post-Employment Mentioned in Note 3.15(b)
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*QOther benefits and payments include Finance cost calculated towards subsidized Loans and advances pro-

vided to staffs.

**Post employment benefit includes Provident fund, Gratuity and Leave provision created, the bifurcation
of which is not quantifiable separately to KMPs. The provision is made on lump sum as per the Actuarial

Valuation.

5.7 Merger and acquisition
No any Merger and acquisition has taken in the years presented.

5.8 Additional Disclosure of Non-consolidated entities

Since, the Microfinance company does not have any subsidiaries, there are no such non-consolidated entities.

5.9 Details of Loan as per NRB Directives No. 2

Current Year Previous Year Change %

Amount % total loan | Amount % total loan | (Inc./(Dec))
Good 19,975,862,948 97.93% 14,990,244,439 92.47% 33.26%
Watch List 48,769,311 0.24% 449,679,494 2.77% -89.15%
Performing 20,024,632,259 98.17% 15,439,923,933 95.25% 29.69%
Substandard 48,765,514 0.24% 175,054,516 1.08% -72.14%
Doubtful 29,780,514 0.15% 261,854,899 1.62% -88.63%
Bad 294,822,438 1.45% 333,547,380 2.06% -11.61%
Non-Performing | 373,368,466 1.83% 770,456,795 4.75% -51.54%
Grand Total 20,398,000,725 100.00% 16,210,380,728 100.00% 25.83%

5.10 Additional Disclosure for Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR)

Statement showing AIR Adjustment

2076/77

AIR as on 2077/03/31

Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 12
months

interest income to be booked (Retained earnings)

2077/78

AIR closing as on 2078/03/31

Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 12
months

AIR to be booked till date

AIR already booked 2077/4/1

Interest income to be booked for the period

2078/79

AIR closing as on 2079/03/32

Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 12
months

AIR to be booked till date

AIR already booked till 2078/3/31

Interest income to be booked for the period

Amount (Rs.)
293,671,873.00

28,521,672.00
265,150,201.00

278,999,384.88

90,947,590.89
188,051,793.99
265,150,201.00
(77,098,407.01)

270,398,415.97

97,885,111.76
172,513,304.21
188,051,793.99
(15,538,489.78)
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5.11 Additional Disclosure

5.11.1 Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is composed of AIR income included in Interest Income as per Accrual Basis of Ac-
counting, Losses on remeasurement of Actuarial Liabilities, Provisions for Losses in Investment whose car-
rying cost is lower than Market Value, Provisions for Non- Banking Assets. Allocation to Regulatory Reserve
is made out of profit of FY 2078-79. Compositions of Regulatory Reserve are as follows:

a. Interest Receivable as on 2079.03.32 (net of tax and bonus effect).
b. Losses on remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation (net of tax effect) which has been charged to

OClI, is allocated to Regulatory Reserve.

Particulars

Creation Due to

Total

AIR

Actuarial Loss

Deferred tax

Opening Regulatory Reserve as on 2076.04.01

Creation 167,044,626.63 167,044,626.63
Reversal -
Closing As on 2077.03.31 167,044,626.63 167,044,626.63
Creation 365,999.90 365,999.90
Reversal (48,571,996.42) (48,571,996.42)
Closing As on 2078.03.31 118,472,630.21 365,999.90 118,838,630.11
Creation 1,313,740.40 3,264,818.45 4,578,558.85
Reversal (9,789,248.56) (9,789,248.56)

Closing As on 2079.03.32

108,683,381.65

1,679,740.30

3,264,818.45

113,627,940.40
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